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BY THE COURT: Swear the witness, clerk.

'DOCTOR MICHAEL WEST,

upon being called to testify as a witness on behalf of the State,
after hav1ng been first duly sworn by Deputy Clerk, Lloyd Cobb,
testlfled as follows, to-wit:

BY THE COURT: You may proceed.

BY MR. ALLGOOD: Thank you, your Honor.

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. ALLGOOD:

Q. Would you tell the ladies and gentlemen of the jury what
your neme is, please, six?

A.A' Uh, Doctor Michael'West.

Q. And what is yeur occupation?

A. I'm a general'dentist.

Q. And where are you presently practicing dentistry in this
state?

A. Uh, Hattiesburg, Mississippi.

Q. And how long have you practiced dentistry in this state?

A. Since nineteen eighty-one.

Q. Doctor West, uh, what capacities do you serve in Forest
County, Mississippi? |

A. Uh, I'm the coroner; chief medical examiner/investigator
for Forest County, and i'm on the, uh, Metro Crime Scene Unit there -
also.

.Q. Doctor, durlng the course of a number of years of your
career I belleve you have labored in the flelds of forensic
odontology, is that correct?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. . If you would, give the Court the benefit of your training

and experience in the field of dentistry and that specializing in
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West - Direct Examination by Mr. Allgood 684
forensic odontology, uh, to include at this particular juncture
just your education. There are some other specifics I would ask in
a little bit.

A. Uh, after graduation from high school in Picayune, I went
to Pearl River Junior College for two years, University of Southern

Mississippi for two years where I received a B.S. Then I attended

the LSU School of Dentistry in New Orleans and upon graduation went

into the United States, uh, uh, Air Force for four years.

Q. And what did you do in the United States Air Force?
Explain-that for the ladies and gentlemen of the jury.

A. Uh,'during my tour of duty in the air force I was a
captain, I was a general dental officer, and also, uh, baSe
forensic dental officer.

Q. Doctor, if you would, tell the ladies‘and gentlemen of

~the jury the number of occasions you have had to lecture in the

fields of forensic odontology and where those lectures took place
and who those lectures were to, what the assembled bodies were.

A, Over the past fifteen years, uh, I've had an opportunity

Ato lecture numerous times, uh, usually as a quest lecturer. A list

of some of the areas that I've lectured, uh, the Mississippi Law
Enforcement Training Academy, the Georgia Police Academy, the FBI
Academy Forensic Science Research Training Centef in Quantico,
Virginia. I've guest lectured at the'Metropolitaanolice Forensic
Science Laboratory, New Scotland Yard, London; I've gquest lectured
for the University Medical Center in Jackson, the University of
Southern Mississippi, the University of ‘Mississippi, Loyola
University in New Orleans, Louisiana State Louisiana——excuselme~—
Louisiana State University'Law.Enforcement Training Center in Baton

Rouge, uh, the Miami Valley Regiondl Crime Laboratory in Ohio, uh,
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Southern Association of Forensic Scientists, Midwest Association of

Forensic Scientists, the Spectrum International Symposium, 1991, in

Detroit, uh, the Dade County Medical Examiner's office in Miami,

.Florida, uh, the Mississippi Trial Lawyers Association, the

Mississippi Prosecutors'fraining, Ohio State Coroners‘Association,
uh, most recently for Polaroid, and numerous law eﬁforcement, uh,
entities in and around the country. |

Q. You mentioned the Dade County Medical Examiner'S'office.
I believe a man by the nﬁme of Doctor Richard Sbuviron works in
that particular office, is that correct?

‘A. Uh, ves, sir.

Q. And you have lectured in that particular area, is that
correct? |
A. ° Yes, sir.
" Q. ' Doctor, if you would, teli the ladies and gentlemen of

the jury the awards you have won for your reseafch efforts in the
field of forensic odontology.

A. Uh, the American Society of Forensic Odontoldgy‘gave me
their éward for research publications back in nineteen eighty-nine,
the Reider F. Sognnaes.Award; uh, I'm also.listed in the marque's
who's who in science and engineering; and received a letter of
commendation frpm the City-of Kenner, Louisiana, for the work I did
in a-airplane crash,theré in, uh, eighty-two.

Q. Doctor, if you would, would you relate for the ladies and
gentlemen the number and the size of the research grants'that you
have had'granted to you in the past in the particﬁlar area of

forensic odontology or at least in areas associated with the

‘investigation of forensic odontology.

A. I received a grant in nineteen ninety from the American
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Board of Forensic Odontology dealing with the, uh, rating of the UV
output of electronic flash sources for UV photogfaphy.

Q. UV stands for what? |

A. Oh, excuse me, pltraviolet.

Q. Go ahead.

A, I'ﬁ currently finishing up a research project that was
funded by the National Insﬁitute of Justice, the Department of
Justice, dealing with‘ﬁafrow band illumination éources for the
fluorescent photography of patterned injuries on skin. I believe
that is the largest, uh, research grant ever) uh, given out in
forensib odontology research.

Q. Whaﬁ academic appointments:-do you currently enjoy?

A. I'm a clinical iﬁstructor at the Uni&ersity' Medical
Cenier in Jackson; I'm a clinical assistant professor Department of
Oral Diagnosis, Medicine and Radiology af the LSU School of
Dentistry in New Orleans.

Q. What ppoféssional organizations are you currentiy a
member in good staﬁding_of? '

. A. Uh, the South Mississippi Dental Society, your dental
organization; uh, the Mississippi State Coroner/Medical Examiner
Associatibn. I've béen president of District'Seven, eighty-nine,
ninety, and this year. Uh, I'm a member of the American Society of
Forensic Odontology. I'm a diplomat in.the American Board of
Forensic odéntology. I was on the board of directors from eighty-
six to eighty-nine. I was on the article and--by-laws and article
committee in eighty-six. I was on the research committee in
eighty—sevén. Uh, I was on the nominating committee in eighty-

eight. I'm currently under suspension from the board which is to

~upheld till eighteen March of this year--eighteen May--excuse me.
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Q. And we will go into that suspension I believe later, is
that correct, Déctor?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Doctor, insofar as your articles and_media sighting work,
if you would, give the Court and the jury the benefit of any

articles and media sighting work you have to your credit in this

‘area of research, that is, forensic odontology.

A. Uh, I've been on CNN science and teéhnoiogy week 5ack in
eighty-nine, uh, the Journal of American Mgdical Association in
ninety-two, uh, Medical Rounds, a television show on CNBC in
ninety-three; uh; also the U. S. Department of Justice Office of
Justice Programs, National Institute of Justice executive technolo—
gy brief research applying it on the front lines, and, uh, several
other newscast. There's one pending, uh, the BBC is doing an hour
on my current research, uh, supposed to be aired either this summer
or the fall in England. ,

Q. Doctor, uh, if you would, how many times have you had the
occasion to present papers to ,professional -assocliations or
gétherings on just bite mark evidence, just bite mark evidence?

A. Just bite mark 1I've presented papers on numerous
occasions. I think my latest total here is--I presented new papers
in, uh, dealing with biie marks on, uh, thifty—nine occasions; uh,
sixteen other occasions were non-bite mark forensic dental related.

So I'm going to say--

Q. And there were sixteen~--
A. ~~thirty-nine times.
'Q. Thirty-nine times on just bite mark, sixteen times on

forensic--extra times on forensic odontology in addition to that

thirty-nine then, is--



~—
R

A U e W N

v 0w W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

29

West - Direct Examination by Mr. Allgood o 688
A. And crime scene--
Q. ~~-that correct?
A. ——yes; sir.
Q. How many total papers have you had, uh, presented to

professional groups, associations or bodies in the course of your

" career, total--

A. Sometimes—-
Q. --which would in--
A. --we repeat a presentation; you'll present a presentation

over and over, but I have a listing of fifty-five presentations.

Q. . Doctor, how many times have you had published:articies’

‘concerning bite mark evidence in any one -of a number of various

professional and scientific journals?

A. I've had, uh, forty-nine articles published, thirty of
them deal with; uh, bite marks.’

Q:  And what about, uh, forensic odontology? You said you

had forty-nine total articles published, thirty some odd of them

dealt with bite marks. What about forensic odontology in general?

How many of those articles would have something to do with thHat?

A, Uh, all of them. There's a couple here oﬁ, uh; pathology
and crime scéne, but the wvast majority is forensic odontology.

lQ. And, Doctor, how many times have yoﬁ ever qualified as an
expe;ﬁ in the fields of forensic odontology in the courts of just
the State of Mississippi?
| A. Oh! Just the State. of Mississippi, I'm sorry I don't
have.that number. One, tw§, three, four, five, six, seven, eight,

nine, ten, eleven, twelve, thirteen, fourteen, fifteen, sixteen,

"seventeen, eighteen, nineteen, twenty, twenty-one, twenty-two,

twenty-three, twenty-four--twenty-eight.
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Q. In the courts of 6ther states, how many times have you
qualified as an expert, and if you would tell us what states those
are, please, sir,

A. I've also given sworn testimony in, uh, Louisiana,’
Arkansas, Kansas, Georgia, California, and Washington. I've given
sworn testimony forty-seven times, twenty-eight times in Mississip-
pi, and twenty-one Eimes concerning bite marks.

Q. Now you are I think currently suspended from the American
Board of Forensic Odontology, is that correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And I believe to begfair,'you were--you resigned from the
American Académy of Forensic Sciences, and I think the Interna-
tional Association of Identification, but that would have been just
before they would have expelled you, is that correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now in--in those pérticular areas, in the Academy of
Forensic Sciences, the International Association of Identification,
and the Américan Boafd of Forensic Sciences, what does all of that
stem frbm? What is the source of all of those difficulties, 1if you
will, please?

A, . There was a case out of Meridian that I was asked to
investigate, was ordered td perform some tests, and I made a report
and testified to what I'd done, what I'd seen. ‘It was the State
versus Larry Maxwell, I think three years ago.

Q. And that occurred in nineteen hundred and ninety what, do

-you recall?

A. I believe ninety-two,

Q. Do you recall what month in ninety-two off the top of

your head?
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A:r It was over a period of several months. I know I

testified in December and I believe in June. There were, uh, two

‘court appearances on hearings in State versus Maxwell.

Q. Now this.particular testimony that you rendered in State
of Mississippi versus Larry Maxwell, thumbnail sketch, what was the
scenario, what occurred, and what did you testify to? Explain that
for the ladies and genﬁlemen of the jury.

A.” A triple homicide had occurréd just outside Meridian.
Three elderly black adu;ts, two females, one in her sixties, one in

her eighties, and a black male in the nineties, had been, uh,

‘bludgeoned with a butcher knife, a hundred and fifty wounds were

abplied to the bodies. I was asked to( number one, examine the
bodies_of the victims and render an opinion as to whether or not a
certain weapon was the weapon that created these wounds. Uh, we
did examine the bodies, we did examine a large butcher knifé that
had some chips in the blade, and we came to the opinion that this
was the ﬁurder weapon. ‘Severai days later, under court order, I
was asked to perform a test on Mr. Maxwell. Mr. Maxwell had béen
arrested and charged with the murder 6f these three individuals.
I Qas asked, number one, to scan his body using special lighting
techniques that I had developed to see if we coﬁld find any

documentation or signs that he had been in a recent struggle. The

-other part of the test was to perform a trace metal test. Trace

metal is where if you grab a metal object, a gun, a knife, et
cetera, you will leave a coating of metal on the skin. | This
coating of metal can be detected by spraying a chemical on to the
skin, lettingAit dry and then illuminating it with either a--
usually an ultraviolet light. Uh, the test is only good for about

twenty-four to thirty-six hours. Uh, it had been eight to ten days
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after the, uh, murder had taken pléce. I infofmed thé sheriff that
there was no need in me téking——doing this test because it was

all--if there was any trace metal evidence it had lohg been gone,

and I was informed.that you've got a court order, do the test. So

‘I turned off the lights and shined the light into the suspect’'s

hands; you have to wear yellow goggles to look at it.

Q. Let me stop you just for a second. This light that
you're talking about I think is what we term a, uh, four hundred
and fifty nanometer blue light I'think is what it's called. 1Is
that correct? |

A. Yes, an alternative light source.

Q. Okay. And it was shown.on to the suspect, along with you
were wearing yellow goégles I think, is that correct? '

A.  Yes, Ssir. |

Q. This is a technique, an.alterhate imaging technique which
you have pioneered, is that correct?

A. .Yes, sir.

Q. is there any person in the United States of America, for
that matter in the'world, who has done more work with alternate
light imaging than yourself?

A 6n wound patterns on skin, no, sir.

Q. On this particular occasion, what did you see? Explain
what you saw on that paiticular insfance.

A. We first Scanned Mr. Maxwell‘é body to see if there were
any bite maiks or ring marks 6r any signs on his arms, legs, et
cetera, that he had been in a fight or a struggle. Those turned
out to be negativé. We,; uh, then, if you would, shifted gears from
the four-fifty light, we were going to get ready to do the trace

metal test on his hands, I informed the sheriff that the trace
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metal test was invalid. TIt's no way it was going to work, and I
shined the blue 1ight on to his.hands; we looked at.it with the
yellow goggles; I wanted to show him that there was no frace metal
there, and to my surprise, and I say surpriée because for twelve
years I've been photographing wounds on people's bodies, abrasions,
scrapes,.bruises; it never occurred to me that you could develop a
bruise in the palm of your hand or a pattern in the palm of your
hand if you held a weapon and wielded it Qery intensely. Uh, what
I'd found in-the palm of Mr. Maxwell's.hand was a‘battern that
happened to ﬁatch the murder weapon. The murder weapon was a
butcher knife about yea lqng; about a foot and a half. The handle
consisted of two pieces of wood riveted together over the shank of
the handle. oﬁe-side of the WOoden handle had broken off so you
had two rivets like nail heads sticking out and then a third rivet
that had broken, and in the palm of his hand we found. two cir;ular
bruise patterns and then a doughnut shaped pattern, and when you
put the knife back into his hand and léﬁ'him close around it, you
could see that thgse bruise patterns matched exactly the>poéition
and size andAlocgtion of the rivets in-the knife. Uh, I became
very excited because I had never seen aﬁywhere in the forensic
literature anybddy' being able to put .the wéapon back into a
suspect's hand, and, uh, we tried to photograph; we had the
sheriff,Amy assistants look at it; we photographed it; we made
charts and diagrams. My problem was I overexposed my film. I
didn't get a picture that I thought was sufficient quality to give
to the jury and say, "Here, you look at it for yourself."
Q..- But you did}take photographs, is that not correct?
A, Yes, sir. A

Q.‘ Now subsequently I believe you testified in court as to
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what you had seen and to the fact that this was a métch, is that
correct?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. And I believe as a result of that testimony, uh, you were
disciplined by both the Americaancademy of Forensic Sciences,
International Association of Iqentifiqation, and suspended from the
American Board of Forensic Odontology, is that correct?

A, Yes, sir. |

Q. Since your suspension from the American Board of Forensic
odontology, how many times ﬁave you been qualified as an expert in
the field of forensic odontélogy in the courts of any jurisdiction?

A. It'll take me just a minute heré. The American Board--
since the Amefican Board action I've testified in court one, two,
thrge, four, five, six, seven times.

Q. All as an expert in the field of--

A. Of forensic odontology, uh, in seven of those.

BY MR. ALLGOOD: If your Honor plgase——‘
A. Excuse me, six of those.
BY;MR. ALLGOOD: If your Honor-pleasé——
A, Child abﬁse in the other. |
BY MR. ALLGOOD; If ybuf Honof please, we would
tender this witness as an expert in the field of
forensic odontology.
BY THE COURT: Voir dire on qualifications.

VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION BY MR. KESLER:

Q. Are you telling this jury that you testified before a
jury in State versus Larry Maxwell?
A, No, sir.

Q. That testimony was before the judge down there so he
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could decide if the jury would hear your testimony.

A. Yes, sir, |

Q. And the judge decided that you were not of sufficient
expertise in this alternate light imaging to so testify.

A. As it was explained to me, if I didn't have a photograph

- for the defense to do their own independent analysis'I'could not

testify about what I saw in his hand. He limited my testimony, but
did ailow’me if we continued to festify on a limited basis.

Q. Who gave you that explanation? \

A. Uh, Bilbo Mitchell, the- district attorney of--it's
Meridiénf—Lauderdale County.

Q. Did he tell you that the judge ruled that it was a novel
technique? -

BY MR. ALLGOOD: If your Honor please, what he was
told I am going to object fo. There is a court order
which has been entered in'that affair. I have a copy of
that court order; I would assume defeﬁse counsel has one
also. T will object to hearsay, your Honor.

BY THE COURT: The objection is overruled. He can
answer.

"BY MR. ALLGOOD: Very-well, your Honor.

A. Yes, sir, it was é——it was new; yes, sir. It;—that was
the case that we discovered the ability of the light to find
patterns in the'palm bf the hand; that was the first time.

Q. Were you told that the jﬁdge ruled that it was not an
accepted technique in the forensic science field?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did Bilbo Mitchell tell you that the judge was not

. convinced that you had done the necessary studies on the technique?
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A. Yes, sir.
Q. Did he tell you that the judge in State versus Maxwell

was concerned about your use of the term indeed and without a

doubt?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Had you in fact used that terminology as a preface to

your opinion in‘that'case?

A. Yes, sir, I did.

-Q. Is that a term that you have employed throughout your
career in giving opinions as a forensic odontologist?

A. Up to February thirteenth of this year.

a.- Of nineteen ninety-five?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Your testimqny is then that prior to February the

thirteenth,'ﬂineteen ninety-five, your opinions were expressed with
the terminology indeed and without a doubt?

A. If I had a opinion which warranted my greatest satisfac-
tion of being a match, in other words, if I thought that it was a
hundred percent, I had not.doubt, I was totally assured'éf mny
results, then I rendered that opinion. If I wasn't a hundred
percent sure, then I would use the term highly probable or highly
consistent.

Q. .You said that you had 1ectured in a number of locations
throughout the--the south and indeed the country?

A. Yeah. China, England, all over America.

Q. Do you remember giving'a presentation to the Southern
Association of Forensic Scientists in Nashville, Tennessee, on May
thirteenth, nineteen ninety-one?

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Did you discuss before that group, uh, the subject of
these opiniohs indeed and without a doubt and reasonable certainty?

A. We went into--

BY MR. ALLGOOD: If your--

A. ;—the terminology--

BY MR. ALLGOOD: If yoﬁr Honor please, I am going to
have to interpose an objection at this point. This has
nothing to. do with his qualifications as an expert.

BY THﬁ COURT: Neither did the fact that he might
have been'suSpended from any organizations, but I allowed
you to go into that.

BY Mﬁ. ALLGOOD: _I,undgrstand that, your Honor.

BY THE COURT: - And.I will overrule the objection.

BY MR. ALLGOOD: Very well, your Honor.

BY THE COURT¢ You may proceed.

Q. Did you tell thaﬁ body that you disagreed with the
doctors and, uh, scientists that employed thé term reasonable
scientific certainty?

| A. It 'was reasonable medical/scientific/dental certainty.
The only literature that I was aware of either through the American
Academy of Forensic Science or the Forensic Medicine Pathology
Journal was, number one, there was no standard set in odontology as
to guidelines or.standards for terminolﬁgyn The other problem that
I had was éll the articles that were'ever published in the American
Societ& of Forensic Odontology or the American Academy of Forensic
Sciences Journal were articles.dealing with how ambiguous the term
reasonable medical, reasonable dental, or reasonable scientific
certainty'was. We had no guidelines, no standards, uh, up until

February of this year.
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. Q. Did vyou tell the Sou?hern Associétion of Forensic
Scientists that you prefer, quote, "It is; it isn't; I can't tell.”
A, Yes, sir. Wound patterns or bite mark analysis'is simply
an extension of tool mark analysis. Tool mark analysis asks a
question, did this object leaQe this impriht in some material,
whether it be skin, wood, metal, whatever. If you're asked did
this object make this imprint, you really only got thiee answers,
yes, it did, no, it didn't,.or I can't teli. Now, uh, those are
answe:s that I feel are the only ones that have any meaning in a
court or to a jury.
Q. éo you don't feel that reasonable degree of scientific
certalnty has any meaning? |
A, It does now, but I find that the juries that I usually

testify to flnd that——they .usually look at me with a kind of

perplexed look like, well, Doctor, did he do it or not, you know,

quit beating around the bush, did he or didn't he, and now, uh, we

said that reasonable medical certainty is now the highest term that

you can use to denote_you are positive, it is a match, uh, your
level of certalnty so now we have guidelines to follow

Q. Now you mentloned the date, February the thlrteenth,

‘nineteen ninety-five.

A." Yes, sir.
Q. Is that coincidentally the date that your appeal of your

suspénsion from -the American Board of Forensic Odontology was

denied?
A, Yes, sir.
Q. Did you take any further action after your appeal within

the organization was denied?

BY MR. ALLGOOD: If your Honor please, once again,
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I interpose an objection. I realize the Court allowed
me to go into the suspension. However, I don't recall
their being an objection made to that by counsel
~opposite. If your Honor please, it has nothing to do
wiﬁh his qualifications; This can certainly be inquired
into on cross examination at a subsequent point in time,
and I don't think it's proper in térms of voir dire at
this point.

BY THE COURT: The objection is overruled. You
can answer. '

A. Could you repeat thét, please?

Q. _After your éppeal of‘yqur suspension was denied, did you
take further and subsequent acﬁion-regardingvthat suspension?

A. I have retained an attorney; ‘He is researching the law
and I'm still negotiating with the board of diréctqrs as to whether
or not we need to go to court to resolve this matter or not.

Q.. Have you filed a lawsuit? '

A; I filed a one point fivé million dollar slander lawsuit
against fhe American Academy of Forensic Science in federal»court.
I haven't had the opportunity, and 1like I say,‘ we're still
neéotiating. Uh, I feel that these men are;—

BY THE COURT: I'm going to interrupt him now.
We are getting a little far afield, counsel. Let's
stick to the voir dire on qualifications.

Q. You are not a board certified forensic odontologist?

A. At this time, no, sir.

Q. You have been--you said resigned from the International
Association of Identification? |

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Did you do thaf quite literally at a hearing where you
were about to be expelled?

A, No, sir. Uh, my resignatioﬁ from the IAI took place in
Orlando, Florida. I had been on the agenda fo speak for an hour on
this new technique of photographing wounds for about four months.
Five minutes before i was to get up and address the, uh, congrega-
tion, the president of the association came up to mé and says,
"Look, we got this complaint. I've read it. I think you're
guilty. I want you to sign this piece of paper and quit.” And I
told him, uh, "You mean I don’'t get to present my evidence; I don't
get to present my side? - You've done decided that I'm guilty, and
it's over with."” .1 said, "I don't think I want to, you know, carry
on with you anymore. Thank you." | |

Q. Okay. Did that happen‘on July the thirty~-first, nineteen

ninety-three?

A. Uh, it sounds pretty close.
Q. And was that president Curtis Shane?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did he make you aware that you had a fight to a hearing?

A. He told he thaf he thought I was guilty and that I ought
to qﬁit. |

Q. Did--

A. And I disagreed with him on being guilty, but I agreed
with him that I didn't need to be part of his organization.

Q. -Did he make you aware of your right to a hearing?

A, No,-sir.

0. You deny that?

A. No, sir——jes, sir.

Q. And as of August the third, nineteen ninety-three, you
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terminated your affiliation, is that correct?

A. With who?

Q. Is that date about right?

A.  With who? '

Q. IAI?

A. Uh, soon as--well I--I took my family to Orlando, you
know, Disney World and all that, and when we got back home, I
drafted a letter, told them I had--when I had joined I thought was
joinihg a pélice organization, not a police stétep and that I
didn't need to be a memberAdf their organization anymore.

Q. And the International Association for Identification, its
membership is mostly law enforcement?

A, Yes, sir. _ |
Q. . And the certification you had through that wés that of a

senior crime scene analyst?

A, Yes, sir.
Q. And you are no longer have such designation?
A. I am the consultant or director, whatever you want to

call it, of the Metro Crime Scene Unit in Lamar and Forest County,
but I do not have a certification through the IAI. No, sir.

Q._' Okay. The—;there was a written finding from the ethics
éoﬁmittee of the American Board of Forensic Odontology concerning
your suspension, is that correct?

‘A. I've got boxes of papers.

. Q. -Okay. One reason for your suspension was material
misrepresentation of evidence and data, was it not?

A. Yes, sir, that's what they claim.

Q. Another ground was failure to act in an impartial manner?

A, Yes, sir.
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Q. Another was presenting opinions regardiné physical
evidence outside the field.of forensic odontology?

A. I find that:—that's_the one that--that--that really stuns
me because they say, uh, you know, sure you've got certification as
a forensic dentist, you're certified as a deputy medical examin-
er/investigator; you're certified as a senior crime scene analyst,
but if you render an opinion about a crime scene, we want to

sanction you for your odontology. Uh, and like I say, that's one

of the things we're ongoing with the board right now.

Q. -Now you mentioned this medical examiner position in
Forest County a éouple of times.
A. Yes, sir.

- Q. Is that an elected position?

A. Yes, sir.
Q. You run for office?
A. I won the special election in November, took office

November the tentﬁj I had been deputy medical examiner/investigator
since nineteen eighty-four. Uh, ﬁhis current election coming up,
I amArunnihg unopposed. |

Q. What is the educational requirement in'the'State of
Mississippi to be 'a county medical examiner?

A, I believe you have to pass high school, uh, never deny
the existence' of a Supreme Being, and then pass a forty hour
course, uh, given by the:state medical examiner's office.

Q. Back to the American Board of Forensic Odontology, you
were é diplomat.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. This wasn't just an organization that you sent -

and got a magazine from?
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A. No, sir. Uh, the American Board of Forensic Odontology
you must submit an. application of case work; you must take a
written, an oral, and a practical test and pass to be certified.

Q. It is a medical specialty board for that particular
field, is it not?

A. i don't know if I'd qualify it as a medical specialty
bbard; no, sir. |

Q. Well dental specialty then?

A. - I wouldn't call it--the American Dental Association which
is thé parent organization for dentistry only recognizes eight or
nine sub--,uh, specialties, and they do not recognize forensic

odontology as a specialty like they do oral surgery, endodontics,

perio, oral surgery, et cetera. = It's a--I'd call it a sub-
specialty.
Q. Now the American Academy of Foremsic Sciénce, did you say

that you resigned from that body?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did they nevertheless make a finding on the complaint

that had been filed against you?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And have you been given a copy of those findings?

A. Yes; sir.

Q. Are YOu familiar with those findings?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did they find that you»engaged.in a pattern of activities
in disregard for generally accepted érofessional standards?‘

A. That's why I kept asking them, how can I break a standard
in ninety-three if it wasn't set till ninety-five.

Q. Did they make that finding? .
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A. I believe they did. |
Q. Did they find fhat you misrepresénted data in order to
support an opinion? '
A. They said I did; yes, sir.

Q. And did they say or make a finding rather that the use of

- the phraée indeed and without doubt is an affirmative concealment

of the possibility of an altérnative?

A. They made that statement, and I still disagree with them
from the language that I Qrew up with. Uh, when I teil a jury this
is my opinion and do I have any doubt about it, no, I don't. If I
do have doubt, then I call it a consistent.:
| 0. Now did,?ou give an interview to the National Law Journal
at one time?

A. Yes, sir.

BY‘MR..ALLGOOD: If your Honor please, what
inferviews with the National Law Jouinél have to do
with this man's éualifications, I cannot--I--I~--I have
to object to this once again. I think it is far afield
from his qualifications. 4

BY THE COURT: The objection is overruled.

BY MR. ALiGOOD: "Very well, your Honér.

Q. Did you tell them that your peers are vastly ignorant, ’
they haven't read the material and haven't done the research? |

A. In the area of alternétive light imaging, photography of
wound patterns on skin, I really only had one contemporary who came
close to any case load, and'that was Doctor Tom Krauss who's passed
away . ‘since then, now you've got to look at it this way, I've been
aoing research in this area for twelve years. My closest competi-

tor has been doing it. for a year, and when I get ﬁp and show the
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pictures and tell them what I have found, the--the vast majority of
dentists get up and say,'"That‘s not possible.” But if ‘you take
this photographic question to photqgraphic experts and ask them,
they'll tell you that not only is it not new, but it's an old
photographic technique';hat's been around for about a hundred

years. All wé're.doing is taking an established photographic

_technique and giving it a new application as far as photography of

wound patterns on skin, and my colleagues are way ignorant for the

vast majority of them in the photography aspects.

Q0. So you were correctly quoted, you said that your peers

are vastly ignorant?'

A. Yes, sir.
Q. Now you said that you have testified as an expert a
number of times since your suspension from the American Board. Is

that seven times?

A. Yes, sir.
Q. One of those cases, at least one was in Louisiana?
A. Well excuse me. (Witness 1looks through file) I

testified in a hearing in Louisiana; yes, sir.

Q. Did you testify in Louisiana versus Keko?
A. Yes, sir.
Qo IS that—"

' BY THE COURT REPORTER: Spell that.
BY MR. KESLER: K-E-K-O.
BY THE COURT ﬁEPORTER: Thank ydu.'
Q. is that the case that you were ﬁaking reference to?
A, Yes, sir.
Q. Did you testify at a hearing or chest--testify at trial?

A. - I testified in the trial; the trial was the previous
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year. Uh, my suspension went in eighteen May of ninety-four, and

I testified in the Keko in September of nihety—fouf—-

Q. - That--
A. --in the hearing.

Q. September, ninety-four, that was a hearing on a motion
for a new trial for Mr. Keko.

Yes, sir.

AL

0. Are you aware of the outcome?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. He was awarded a new trial?

A. Yes, sir. '

Q. Baséd upon your failure to disclose certain information

to the trial court, is that fair?

A, No.

Q. Wﬁat was it?

A. Failuré of myself, Docfor Soﬁviron,_and Doctor Golden to
disclose fhat I had an. ethics complaint against me. chtor

souviron and Doctor Golden testified for the deﬁense; they were on
the ethicé committee and I testified for the prosecution. We were
told by the board that_this was confidential and that we were not
sﬁpposed to tell anybody; if we told anybody ﬁe,could get kicked
out. 8o we didn't téll anybody énd then after it wés over and made
public the judge said, "You should have told me."
' Q. The judge in Keko granted a new trial because he felt

that should have been'testified to? |

A. 'Yes, sir.

Q. Do you anticipate testifying against Mr. ‘Keko again?

A. Yes, sir. I do for this reason: there was an ethics

complaint saying that my technology, the alternative light imaging



O O ~N O U A~ W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

20

21

22
23
24
25
26
27
28

29

West - Voir Dire Examination by Mr. Kesler 706
didn't work, that I made it up and made a -story about it. I do
admit that I probably tried to take it to court too early; I should
have waited till I ﬁad'a little more peer review before we tried to
introduce it in court, but now, uh, Doctor Golden and Doctor
Souvifon have both published and presented papers saying that the
fluorescent photography works so I anticipate going back to trial
with Mr. Keko.
Q.. Have you been furnished a copy of the Keko, as vyou
pronounce it,-court;s opinion on these issues?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. You have read that?
A. I looked through it at--I'm not very good in legalese.
Q. Did you read that--where the Court stated that had it
known about your suspension that it would have never issued an
arrest warrant for Mr. Keko?
BY MR. ALLGOOD: If Y6u£ Honor please, this is at--
ﬁY THE COURT: You're getting a little far afield,
counsel. Let's get back oh the qualifications and cross
examination on qualifications. .
BY MR. KESLER: May I approach the bench?
BY THE COURT: You mnay. |
(THE ATTORNEYS APPROACHED THE BENCH; ALONG WITH THE
* COURT REPORTER, AND THE FOLLOWING OCCURRED OUT OF THE
ﬁEARING OF THE JURY:)
BY MR. KESLER: The State went to great length's to
show where he's been allowed to testify as an expert. I
think I'm allowed to go into where he has not been
allowed.,

BY THE COURT: Fine.
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BY MR. ALLGOOD: I wasn't allowed into, quote,
Mforeign jurisdictions,couit orders," your Honor.

BY THE COURT: We have gone a little far afield.
Let's gét back on the--

BY MR. KESLER: I have a Mississippi case to cover
on that issue.

BY THE COURT: Let's back on the--we've gone quite
lengthy into that issue. 'I think you have developed it
fully, but I will allow you to continue to cross examine
on voir dite on gualifications.

BY MR. KESLER: Yes, sir.

(ATTORNEYS RETURN TO RESPECTIVE SEATS)

Q.. Are there any other courts that have not accepted you as

an expert witness?
A, I don't believe.

Q. Are you familiar with the prosecution of a man named
Johnny Bourn?

A. . Yes, sir.

Q. You rendered an opinion £o the district attorney in

Pascagoula, Mississippi, on that case?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That case never got to trial?

A. No,'sir.

Q. The district attorne§ had to dismiss that case?
A. I don't know if he héd to, but he did.

Q. He did.»

BY MR. KESLER: The Court indulge me just a moment.
(MR. KESLER CONFERS WITH MR. WALTERS)

BY MR. KESLER: Your Honor, we do object to the
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reéeption of this man as an expert witness in this court.
We believe that he has failed to demonstrate qualifica-
tions.

BY THE COURT: Fine. Ladies and gentlemen, I'm
going to ask you to step back in the jury room. We're
going to take a brief recess at this time. You've .been
out here for a pretty good while. I'm.going to ask you
to step-back. |

(JURY OUT)
_ BY THE COURT: Do either of you care to be heard on
it?

BY MR. KESLER: Yes, sir. I assume this is my
motion. Am I first?

BY THE COURT: That procedure would be fine. Go
ahead now if you care to argue. | '

BY MR. KESLER: Your Honor, I, uh, from the legal
argument, uh, I think the Court if--it probably is
familiar with, if not, I have a copy of the United State
Supreme Court decision in Daubert versus Merrill-Dow.
That is a federal rules of evidence case, of course. My -
research does not indicate that the Mississippi Supreme
Court has even discussed Daubert to this date; however,
our rﬁles of evidence regarding experts are identical,
and there is a, uh, discussion in this decis--decision
regarding the role of the t?ial court in being a, "gate-
keeper," quote, unquote, as to the admissibility of
scientific opinions, and I am urging the trial court to
read, review and consider our rule, that is, the

Mississippi Rule of Evidence which is of course identical
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to the federal rule in light of.Daubert, and I would

' simply like to, if the Court would like to avail of

itself, pass this copy of Daubert to the Court.

BY fHE COURT: .We can agree that the--both the
Mississippi rules and federal rules are substantially
similar rulés——

BY MR. KESLEk: I have--

BY THE COURT: --concerning experts.

EY MR. KESLER: --examined them, your Honor. They
are word for word.

BY THE COURT: I believe--I believe'they are
substantiaily similar, and we can also agreé that the
courts of the United Statés and the various states that
have adopted the federal rules give a liberal
interpretation to that rule.’ Is that correct?

BY MR. KESLER: That is what Daubert is talking
about.

BY THE COURT: Okay. I just wanted to know, we
have--we're on the same wave link. Do you care to
respond?v

BY MR. ALLGOOD: If your Honor please, it now
appears that we have moved from voir dire of an expert
on his qualificatiéns to aAKelly Frye hearing or what
functionally is a Kelly Frye hearing bécause thét's what
Daubert concerns itself with.

BY MR. KESLER: Exactly.

BY Mﬁ. ALLGOOD: If necessary, your Honof, I will
make a proffer at this particular point in time to clear

the air insofar as that particular issue is concerned.
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BY THE COURT: I would rather have the extent of
the testimony given to me other--by another source other
than this witness. at this time to see whether there is a
necessity for that hearing.

BY MR. ALLGOOD: ‘If your Honor please; I will state
into the record ihen.

BY THE COURT: Fine. Would you step down from the
witness stand at this time, Doctor West, and you will be
summoned.again when we reach that stage.

Thank you.
(WITNESS LEAVES WITNESS STAND) -

BY MR. ALLGOOD: If your Honor please, my proffer
véry simply is that during the course of this
investigation the only use of any, quote, "novel,"
unquote, technique was that the ALI, that is, alternate
light imaging process, was used on this child's body;
however, it was not gséd in forming any. opinions, no
photographs were taken, nothing was found in the course

of irradiating the child's body with the four hundred

and fifty nanometer blue light; there was nothing that

was not seen with the naked eye that was seen with the
blue light that was developed by the blue light, and
the use of that scanning fouf'hundred and fifty nanometer
light played absolutely no part whatsoever in these
analysis in this particular case. I would fufther
proffer to the Court that when Doctor Richard

Souviron testifies, he will testify that he himself has
no difficulties»whatsoever with the processes and

procedures followed by Doctor Michael West in this



[&; B - PV L

10

11

12

13
14
15
16

17

18

19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

29

Motion to Exclude Testimony of Expert (Jury Out) 711

case.

BY MR. KESLER: May I put a spin--the defense spin?
Your Honor, what Ddctor Souviron is éoing to say, to be
exact, is cut off--he's éoing to say as far as it went.
He is not going to wholeheartedly - endorse Doctor West's
techniques. He is going to say that what he did is
contemplated and meets minimal standards, but may not
have reached the recommended gﬁidelines.

BY THE COURT: ' Fine. . Then that is strictly then
a battle of experts and expert testimony. .It does not

involve, as I understand it, an opinion given on a novel

‘scientific procedure or test or any new development

untried or untested in-a particular scientific field.

'BY MR. ALLGOOD: That's correct, your Honor.

- BY THE COURT: I don't see the necessity for a
Frye hearing in that incident or in that instance;
howeVer, before any opinions of a scientific nature,
medical:nature}or dental nﬁture are given in this court
or offered in this court, they must meet certain
standards and those opinions must Be to a reasonable
medical, dental or scientific certainty. I do not
know what bpinion miéht be offered or--

BY MR..ALLGOOD:~ All--

BY THE COURT: --not in this case, but if it is
not to those standards——

BY MR. ALLGOOD: All opinions offered on behalf
of the State willvbe in conformity with that ruling,
your Honor.

BY THE COURT: Do you want me to review the case
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prior to ruling?

BY MR. KESLER: I do.

BY TﬁE COﬁRT: Please let me have it--

BY MR. KESLER: I would also--

'BY.THE COURT: Please let me have it.

‘BY MR. KESLER: Your Honor, if I may tender as an
exhibit fqr the purposes of this hearing only, uh, the
letter report of Doctor West dated May fourteen, nineteen
ninety-two, which was suﬁplied to us pursuant to
discovery, and a supplemental report dated September
twenty—oné, nineteen ninety-three, that was also supplied
as supplemental'discovery that the Court--I--I would ask
the Couft to take a look at those.

BY THE COURT: Would you paés those to the court
reporﬁer——

BY MR. KESLER: VYes, sir.

BY THE COURT: —--please.

BY MR. KESLER: May I hand the Court the Daubert
case while I'm up here.

BY THE.COURT: Identification only, court
reporter.

(COURT REPORTER MARKS COPY OF REPORT FROM DOCTOR
WEST DATED MAY 14, 1992, AS-DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT'NﬁMBER
23 FOR IDENTIFiCATIQN)

(COURT REPORTER MARKS COPY OF REPORT FROM DOCTOR
WEST DATED SEPTEMBER 21, 1993, AS DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT
NUMBER 24 FOR IDENTIFICATION)

BY THE COURT REPORTER: Okay.

BY THE COURT: Thank you, court reporter. Court's
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in recess.

(RECESS)

* % Kk Kk Kk k k Kk k %

FOLLOWING THE RECESS, ALL MEMBERS OF THE COURT, INCLUDING THE
COURT REPORTER, ATTORNEYS, CLERK, BAILIFFS, AND THE

DEFENDANT BEING PRESENT, THE FOLLOWING PROCEEDINGS WERE HAD:

BY THE COURT: Gentlemen, I have some more reading
to do before I go on the record with an opinion in this
matter and it's approaching five o'clock. I propose to
recess'the jury ét this time under proper instruction
and continue testimony tomorrqw'morning at nine o'clock.
I do want to reiterate for the record mattefs that were
discussed in chambers concerning thisvexpert. I
specifically discussed matters and areas that we could
agiee on and counsel for the State and defendant have
told me that we can agree that there is a body of
scientific knowledge that would allow the identification
of individuals through bite mark examination on soft
tissue. Am I correct in that statement?

| BY MR. ALLGOOD: I think that's correct, your Honor.

BY THE COURT: Am I correct in that statement?

BY MR. KESLER: There is such a body of forensic
science. '

BY THE COURT: And it is generally accepted in the
scientific community for the basis of opinions.

BY MR. KESLER: Among forensic odontologists, yes,

sir, it is, of which the defense expert is one. It is

not the science in question; it is the qualifications

of the individual.
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BY THE COURT: Thank you. I'm glad you made that
clear for the record.

BY MR. KESLER: Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: So that--that--on that particular
point, we can agree.

BY MR. KESLER: Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: Show the jury in, please,

(JURY IN)

BY THE COURT: Ladiés and gentlemen, that is a
mighty small'room for fourteen individuals to be in
wondering when we're going to start again. There are
still,some matters that I must take up before we can
begin with additional testimony; Rather than have you

sit back there in that foom, I am going to recess until

nine o'clock tomorrow morning. During this recess,

please do not discuss the case among yourselves or with
anyone else. Do not allow anyone to speak to you abégt
this case. I have inétructed the bailiffs to contact

the Holiday Inn and have the televisions that were

removed reinstalled in your rooms. I do not know whether

- that has been completely accbmplished.

BY BAILIfF, MR. OGLESBY: Hadn't at lunch, but I
checked on them.

BY THE COURT: But in any event it is supposed to
be accomplishéd. You might sée if you can check on
that again and see iflyou can speed thiﬁgs up in that
vein, if--if hasn't already been done.

.BY BAILIFF, MR. OGLESBY: Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: In the event that you do‘have those
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televisions, should any news coverage come on about this
particular trial or the events of this tfial, please turn
it off immediately or turn to another channel, disregard
it. As I told you, you have the best seats in the house.
You will know everything you need to know to resolve this
case, based on'evidencé and testimony you hear here in
the courtroom not on what some other person's opinions’
might'be as to what happeﬁed_in.thé courtroom.

Are there any other or further instructions that the
State would request the Court give at this time?

BY MR. ALLGOOD: Not from the State, your Honor.

BY THE COURT: The defendant? |

BY Mﬁ..kESLER: No, sir. |

BY THE COURT: I'm going to ask you to go béck into
that crowded room at this time until they get the vans
ready for you to carry you back to- the métel. You may
retire to the jury room.

(JURY OUT)

BY THE COURT: Anything further before the recess?

‘BY MR. ALLGOOD§ Not on behalf of the State, your
Honor.

BY MR. KESLER: 1I'd just like to note that the
Court in chambers-granted.me the opportunity to make
that offer of proof'and,I'll do that in the morning.

BY THE COURT: There were some matters that defense
counsel had broﬁght up to the Court, wanted to have
certain items marked for identification purposes-~-

‘BY MR. KESLER: Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: --on its motion to exclude this
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testimony of Doctor Michael West.

BY MR. KESLER: Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: It's my undersfanding you have to
make copies to be able to do that and you do not
anticibate that taking more than a fewnmumenté tomorrow
morning.

BY MR. KESLER: ‘I don't think it will. I will
organize it, get the copies ready and it will be much
more efficient if I do it in the morning.

BY THE COURT: If iﬁys,going to--if you enyision'it
takiﬁg.a substantial amount of time or additional
testimony, I want to go ahead and do it this.afternoon.

BY MR. KESLER: Your Honor, I--1I'm not anticipating
additional testimony; it'll be documentaff in nature.

BY THE COURT: Fine. |

BY MR. KESLER: I might want to maké a short
dictation, but no witness from the witness stand.

BY THE COURT: When a lawyer tells me it's going to
be short or brief,'I'm always a little cautious.

BY MR. KESLER: I'm going to give you the proverbial
five minutes, but it won't take over ten.

BY THE COURT: Court is in recess until nine o'clock
tomorrow morning. |

(RECESS)
k %k %k k k k Kk % % *
FOLLOWING THE OVERNIGHT RECESS, ALL MEMBERS OF THE COURT,
INCLUDING THE JUDGE,‘COURT REPORTER, ATTORNEYS, CLERK, BAILIFFS,
AND THE DEFENDANT BEING PRESENT, THE FOLLOWING PROCEEDINGS WERE HAD

ON THURSDAY, MARCH 23, 1995:
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BY THE COURT: I believe you had something you
wanted to get done that would take approximately five
minutes this morning.

BY MR. KESLER: Yes, sir. I had, uh, some-
méterials that I wanted to put in as an offer of proof
as to Doctor West's qualifications. Your Honor, in--in
no particular--may I come over and just hand these to
the court reporter as I identify them?

BY THE COURT:. You may. Have you shown them to
the State?

(DOCUMENTS SHOWN TO MR. ALLGOOD)

- BY MR; ALLGOOD: There are two transcripts and a
video tape. I have not seen the two transcripts and the
video tape, and of course it would take a considerable
amount of time to read those fwo things. I realize
this is not going to the jury, uh, and I--I--I--1 don't
think at this particular point, I'm going-to be at any
position to'object to any of this. This is just for the
Court's perusal onvthe.motion. However, uh, there is a
sizable amount éf material there that if it were to get
in a situation where this material was to be offered to
the jury or things of that nature, I do need the time to
read that. I--I--

BY THE COURT: It's my understanding that it was
not--are you just wanting to put it in the record for
whatever benefit.

BY MR, KESLER: 1If appéllant review is necessary

~in this case, I simply want it in the record to be

available.
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BY THE COURT: And preserved.

BY MR. KESLER: Now, your Honor, there are--I expect
Doctor West to testify in conformity as--as he has in
the past, but if he does not, of course, then some of
this I may use as impeachment evidence. I--I am assuming
that he is going to testify as he has many times before.

BY THE COURT: I assﬁme that what this is, all these
materials, and the Court hadn't seen these materials
either--

BY MR. KESLER: Correct.

BY THE COURT: --nor had they been offered prior
to the proffer today, but I assume it is supportive of
the defendant's cross examination of £he expert concern-
ing his credentials or voir dire concerning his
credentials yesterday.

BY MR. KESLER: It is.

BY THE COURT: And that you merely are offering
this as supportive of that cross examination that you
did yesterday. | |

BY MR. KESLER: I am.

BY'THE_COURT: If that's the reason and you merely
want it markéd for ﬁhat reason alone, I wiil allow it.

BY MR. KESLER: Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: Should there become a later time
it become necessary for YOu to use something for
impeaéhment purposeé, I feel that you would be allowed
toAfeel free to use that for impeachment and impeachment
only.

BY MR. KESLER: Yes, sir. These materials I do not
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feel would be proper for dir--defendant's case in chief
direct evidence.

BY THE COURT: Fine. You just want them marked
for—--

BY MR. ALLGOOD: I——I;m~—I'm not having any problem
at all, Judge.

| BY THE COURT: Fine. Would you just pass the

materials to the court reporter'and.ask her to mark
them.

BY MR. KESLER: Do you want me to call this out
and identify them, your Hdnor?

BY THE COURT: I think that you need to.

BY MR. KESLER: This is a tape of Doctor Michael

West, May thirteenth, nineteen ninety-one, a presentation

~ to the Southern Association of Forensic Scientists in

Nashville, Tennessee.
-BY THE COURT REPORTER: These are for identifica-
tion?

BY THE COURT: I.D. only in support of a proffer

in the defendant's motion to the Court to exclude

Doctor West's testimony in this case. You may proceed.

(COURT REPORTER MARKS VIDEO TAPE OF MAY 13, 1991,
AS DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NUMBER 24,- FOR IDENTIFICATION)

BY¥ THE COURT REPORTER: Okay.

BY MR. KESLER: Your Honor, this is a transcript
consisting of the direct and cross examination of
Doctor Michael West from a trial that was styled State
of Mississippi versus Alfred Ray Case. This is not a

certified copy. It is a plain copy and it is only a
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portion of that overall'transcfipt.

(COURT REPORTER MARKS COPY OF TRANSCRIPT FROM
ALFRED RAY CASE AS DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NUMBER 26 FOR
IDENTIFICATION)

BY THE COURT REPORTER: Okay.

BY MR. KESLER: Next is a transcript of the

testimony of Doctor Michael West before the

Twenty-flfth Judicial District Parish of Plaquemlne,
State of Loulslana in an action styled State of
Louisian--Louisiana versus Anthony Keko.

(COURT REPORTER MARKS TRANSCRIPT FROM KEKO CASE .

_AS DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NUMBER 27 FOR IDENTIFICATION)

BY THE COURT REPORTER: Okay.

BY MR. KESLER: Next is a judgment and suppbrting
opinion by the Twenty-fifth Jﬁdicial District Court of
Parish of Plaguemine, State of Louisiana in that action
styled State of Louisiana versus Anthony Ke--Keko. It
is a judgment granting a new trial following a
conviction of capital murder. It is not a certified
coéy, ybur Honor.

| (COURT REPORTER MARKS COPY OF JUDGMENT FROM KEKO
CASE AS DEFENDANT;S EXHIBIT NUMBER 28 FOR IDENTIFICATION)

BY THE COURT REPORTER: Okay.

BY MR. KESLER: Your Honor, next I have a copy of
the Circuit Court's.opinion, State of Mississipbi

versus Larry Costell Maxwell, Cause Number 5139, Circuit

' Court of Kemper County, Mississippi, that was entered

December four, nineteen ninety-two. It is not a

certified copy.
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(COURT REPORTER MARKS COPY OF OPINION IN MAXWELL

CASE AS DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NUMBER 29 FOR IDENTIFICATION)
' BY THE COURT REPORTER: Okay.

BY MR, KESLER: Next; your Honor, is a'certified
copy of a motion for nol pros and an order of nol pros
entered by the Circuit Court of Jackson County,
Mississippi, in an action styled State of Mississippi
versus Johnny Bourn, No. 93-10,214(3) in that court.

(COURT REPORTER MARKS COPY OF NOL PROS IN JOHNNY
BOURN CASE AS DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NUMBER 30 FOR
IDENTIFECATION) '

BY THE COURT REPORTER: Okay.

BY MR. KESLER: Next, your Hénor, is a copy of a
case report authored by Chris'Sperry, M.D.,_and Homer

R. Campbell, Jr., D.D.S. It's entitled "An Elliptical

- Incised Wound of the Breast Misinterpreted as a Bite

Injury.”

(COURT REPORTER MARKS COPY OF CASE REPORT AS
DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NUMBER 31 FOR IDENTIFICATION)

BY THE COURT REPORTER: Okay.

BY MR. KESLER: Last, your Honor, I'd like to
offer as a collective exhibit the reports of chtor
West's expulsion from the American Academy of Forensic
Sciences,  American ﬁoard of Forensic Odontology, and
the International Association for Identification. |

(COURT REPORTER MARKS COPY OF REPORTS OF DOCTOR

- WEST'S EXPULSIONS AS DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NUMBER 31-A

' FOR IDENTIFICATION)

BY THE COURT REPORTER: Okay.
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BY MR. KESLER: Your Honor, very briefly, these
materiéls would show, if presénted as.evidence‘to the
Court that, uh, in addition to the matters that the
Court actgally heard in open court yesterday, that
Doctor West has no regard for the standard of
reasonable degree of scientific certainty, that he
bases. his dp;nibns entirely on subjective observations,
that Doctor West: fails to identify wound patterns as
bite marks prior to making direct comparisons_with
déntal models, tﬁat.he believes there is no consénsus
on standards within the scientific community of bite
mark analysts, that he believes there are only threé
possible 6pinions that a forensic odoﬁtologist'should
express, first being one hundred percent positive
identification, sécond being one hundred percent
ekqlusion, third insufficient data to make an opinion,
that Doctor Michael West.méterially’ﬁisrepresented
facts concerniﬁg the pending discipline to the trial
Judge in Louisiana versus Keko. Doctor West considers
bite mark identification as much an art as it is a
science, and ;haﬁ Doctor West's methods have not been
subject to any valid scientific validations. There
have been no controlled studies; there héve been no
double blind studies and there is no determined error
rate. That conéludes'the offer of proof.

BY THE COURT: Expert testimony and expert
opinion has been offered in the courts of the United
States throughout the history of the judicial system.

Prior to passage of the Mississippi Rules of Evidence,
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this evidence was offered under our old common law
system and post rules under the Mississippi Rules of
Evidence 700 series. In this particular case and to
the point, expert testimony is proposed to'be offered

by the State and as I understand it by the defendant

: concernihg a field of study known as forensic

odontology, that is, the idenfification of ‘injuries to
soft tissues as being caused by teeth and the
identification ér possible identification of individuals
through patterns of wounds left in that soft tissue as
compared to dental impressions of teeth of suspects, in
this case the suspect being the_défendant in this case.
Both the State and the defense agree that there is a

body of scientific knowledge that is recognizéd

‘concerning this identification. The main thrust, as this

Court views -it, of the defendant's objection is to this
particular witness, not that he has the requisite

knowledge or training to make such identification and to

render opinions, but in this Court's view more--the

objection is more to the issue of this witness's

credibility concerning his opinions. The Court feels

" that the witness should be allowed to testify and render

opinions based on his knowledge-and training and
expertise in this field, and that the credibility issue
is one for the trier of fact in this case: Therefore
the motion of the defendant is overruled because this
Court does feel that such testimony elicited by Doctor
West and Doctor Souviron for the defense in this case

will aid and assist this trier of fact in determining



N oy ool W N e

w o«

10

12
13

14 .

15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

23

24

25
26
27
28

29

Ruling on Motion to Exclude Testimony (Jury Out) 724
West ~ Direct Examination by Mr. Allgood )

issues in this case. It is a jury function to determine
the credibility of these witnesses aﬁd the opinions
espoused by those witnesses. Should the defendant
request, the Court would grant a cautionary instruction
concerning experts in this case. |

‘Are we ready'to proceed?

BY MR. ALLGOOD: The State's ready to proceed,
your Honor.

. BY THE COURT: Show the jury in, please. Get
the witness back on the witnéss stand.
(JURY IN)
(DOCTOR MICHAEL WEST’RETﬁRNS TO WITNESS STAND)

BY THE COURT: The State has tendered this
witness as an éxpert in the field of forensic
odontology. The Court ﬁill at this time accept this
witnéss as ‘an expert in thaf field, and the witness
will be allowed to offer opinions in that field, as
‘long as such bpinions are to a legal standérd, that
is, that such opinions must be based to a reasonable
scientific certainty. You may proceéd.

BY MR. ALLGOOD: Thank you, your Honor.

DIRECT EXAMINATION CONTINUES BY MR. ALLGOOD:

Q. Doctor West, you were asked a couple of questions during
your voir dire of yesterday concerning several things. First of
all, let's talk about alternate light imaging. Explain for the
ladies and gentlemen of the jury what alternate light'iﬁaging is.

- A. Alternate light imaging is kind of a fancy name for
literally looking at someéething in a different light. What we do is

if you take the whole visible light, white light that comes from
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the sun or a light bulb, it's made up of the rainbow, blue to red;
got red and green and yellow all in the middle. Iﬁ's been a known
photographic and medical fact for many.years that if you take just
a small portion of that rainbow, juét pure blue or pure yellow or
pure red and shine that on an object, you may come up with what we
call fluorescence and what it allows you to do ié to literally look
at something in a different light. It's called an alternative
light because originally the light sources themselves, uh, back in
nineteen seventy-seven they used-a laser to find fingerprints. Uh,
when you shined the ligh--laser light on it the fingerprint would
glow, -and further reseafch showed that you didn't have to have a
laser,'all you needed was just a--a narrow beam of the spectrum.

So what they did was make a machine that had a very bright light

~and you'd put filters like sunglasses in front of the light and it

‘would only let a certain portion of that light through, and it was

an alternative to the laser. Uh, most women are familiar with
this; if you put on makeup for fluorescent lights and fhen go
outéide in the sunlight you look different. It's just a different
way of looking at things. You can see things you normally don't
see under regular light.

Q. Insofar as a technique devised by you, alternate light
imaging refers to what? .Explain that technique for the ladies and
gentlemen of the jury.

A. Okay. Alternate light imaging is a technique where you
look at an individual in the, uh——witﬁ no ambient light, in éther
words, it's dark. You use a high intensity narrow band blue light
to shine on to their body; you then put on yellow sunglasses; the
vellow sunglasses are designed to block out the blue that is

reflected off the surface. That is what we call reflective
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photography or reflective imaging. If you block out.the reflec-
tive, you will then only have what we call fluorescence. Uh, you
know, your watch ié——that‘sometimes you can shine them in a light_
and then go into the dark and they glow. Uh, that's a type of
fluorescence. If you've ever seen these black lights that they use
to shine on posters or examine material with, they'll cause cotton
and fibers to glow, fluoresce, and I'm interested in capturing the
fluoreScénce, not the reflection, uh, and it's just a standard
photographic technique.

Q. Insofar as the use of this blue light, I think it's four

. hundred and fifty nanometers and the'yellow goggles ‘and what have

you, who has pioneered this particular technique?
“A. I have.

Q. And insofar as Maxwell, the case Where,‘uh, you had your

genesis of these--these difficulties, these disciplinary actions

with these professional boards-and associations, what procedures,
what--what - system were you using in Maxwell?

-A.  15 Maxwell we were using alternative light imaging which-
was the blue light, the yellow goggles, and then a fluorescent
return. ' |

Q. Now in this case, tﬁis case téday, State versus Kennedy
Brewer, what part did alternative light imaging play in vyour
analysis of the e&idence in this case?

A, We did in this situation, uh, _ after
we had video taped her and photographed her-- '

Q. Using conventional means?

A. | Conventional light, regular like you take pictures of,
you know, Christmas and Birthdays with a camera; éfter Qe had

accbmplished that we did look at her body, Doctor Hayne and myself
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dld put her under a black light and a blue light to see was there
anything different or did anything appear better to us. " Uh, we

scanned her body; nothing changed. 1In this instance, it did not

help us see anything that we couldn't already see.

Q. So was there any part wgatsoever that the blue light,
_//w . _'_"—_\WN
alternative imaging, anything of that nature piazlin’ghigﬂpart;pu—
T . T
lar ana1y51s?

-

e

— K. In our analysis and opinion it._EEXgQJML{Euﬂk- atsggyar.
Q. nd insofar as the techniques that you used, this is, uh,
comparison, ﬁh, ;in_ this particular case using conventional
photography, is that in fact a standard methqd nsed throughont the
forensic odontology dommunity? | |

A, Yes, sir.

Q. Now, Doctor, likewise, uh, you were asked some questions
concerning a case in the State of Louisiana called Keko I believe,
is that correct? |

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now in Keko you were questioned abont the pending
disciplinary actions surrounding your testimony in Maxwell, is that
correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And yon=in fact told the board that you--told the Court
that, uh-—or what did you tell the Court, just briefly--quickly,
thumbnail sketch? Wwhat did you inform the Contt during that trial
in Keko? | |

A, Uh, we told them.about this~-the history of the case with
Maxwell where we discovered this in the palm of the hand, where in
the Keko it was on the shoulder; we had been doing that for five or

six years.
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Q. Who--who were the experts on the othe; side in Keko?
A, Uh, Doctor Dick Souviron and Doctor Greg Golden.
Q. Doctoxr Richard Souviron chaired the .committee which
recommended your suspension, is that correct?
BY MR. KESLER: Your Honor, we're going to object
to the leading of the witness and also--
BY MR. ALLGOOD: I'll--
BY TﬁE COURT': Don‘f lead--
BY MR. ALLGOOD: I'll rephrase it, your Honor.
BY THE COURT: Don't lead your witness, counsel.
Q. What-- |
BY MR. KEShER: We also object; this witness is
reéponding to we.and our and such. We object to that.
BY THE COURT: He'll be subject to cross examina-
tion. You may proceed.
Q. "Doctor Richard Souviron performed what‘function in-your
suspension? | |
A. - He was the chairman of the comMittee to determine whether
or not I misrepresentgd myself about the technique in blue
lighting.
Q. And Doctor Greg Golden was also on the other side I
believe, is that correct? |
A. Yes, sir, he was.
0. And what capacity did Doctor ‘Golden serve -on that
committee?
A. He was the second member of the three man committee
ruling on my, uh, correctness in- the blue.light episode.
Q. What ihformatién'was imparted to you, to Doctor Souviron,

and Doctor Golden concerning the pendency of these disciplinary
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actions?
BY MR. KESLER: Your Honor, we'll object unless he
lays a found--who was impartihg this.
BY THE COURT: I'm going to overrule. I feel that
that has been qeveloped'prior to this and will be V
de&eloped further, and I think that I should allow it at
this time so that objection will be overruled.
BY MR. KESLER: Yes, sir.
. BY THE COURT: You may answer the question.
‘A. I'm sorry. What was it?
Q. What information was imparted to you, to Doctor Souvirqn,
to Doctor Golden concerning the--the pendency of these particular
actions?

A. We were told that it'was supposed to be confidentiaij]

-that we were not supposed to tell anyone that charges had been| -

brought, that an investigation was going on until after the opinion}’

.and the appeals, then ‘it was supposed to be made public. If we\

told what was going on, we were to be, you know, kicked out of the

. board. ‘ e,

Q. And during the course of those hearings'in Keko did.
Doctor Richard Souviron or Doctor Greg Golden ever rgveal to the
Court the pendency of these disciplinary actions?

A. No, sir.

Q. All three of you, not just you, but all three of you said
nothing about it, is that correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, Doctor, uh; likewise you madé mention of an ethics
complaint yesterday during your voir dire, an .ethics complaint

which concerned your techniques, that. was in fact the same
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complaint we're talking about or have talked about here that--that
bégan with Maxwell, is that not correct?

A. Yes, sir. It's all from the Maxwell case with the
pattern in his hand. |

Q. Just so there's no misunderstanding on the part of thém

jury, there's just one instance, one complaint, one sit--situation,

———

that's with Maxwell, right?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Now on May fifth, nineteen ninety-two, did you have the

occasion'to examine the body of Christina Jackson?

é. (Witness examines file) Yes, sir, I did.

Q. And upon examining ‘the body of _ fifst
of all, where did that occur? ’

A. Uh, at the Mississippi Mortuary, Rankin County Morgue in,
uh, Brandon--Pearl--excuse me--Pearl, Mississippi.

Q. Upon examining the--the body of_at that
time, what did you perceive, if anything at all?

A. After examiﬁing her body visually, I discussed with
Doctor Hayne and the cbroner the possibility of béing able to hold
the body in the, uh,.morgue cooler for a day or two. We have found
in the examination of remains, especiallyApedple that have been
in——submerged-in_water that if we allow these individuals to sit in
the cooler, uh, it allows the tissue to dry a little bit, it makes

the minute abrasions and scratches on the skin become much more

‘apparent. Uh, we refer to it as aging the wounds and allowing them

to come to the surface. So the decision was made to allow the body
to, uh, sit in the morgue cooler so that it'll--within the next day

or two we could come back and do a much more intense examination of

~the skin.
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V Q. And insofar as what you--you examined and what have you

on that particular day, uh, what efforts did you subsequently make

I believe on May eighth of nineteen hundred and ninety-two to
obtain something to compare all this with?

A. A deputy from the Noxubee County sheriff's office brought

four individuais down to my office in Hattiesburg. Uh, they were

Kennedy Brewer, Gloria Jackson, Dewayne Graham, and Leshone

Williams. Uh, they were brought to my dental office; uh, there we

‘talked with them as to what procedures we wanted to do; uh, release

forms were given; they signed the release forms and we then took
standard denﬁal impressions of their mouth. This is a procedure '
that's done routinely every day by dentists. Uh, you mix up a
material called alginate, .looks a lot like Jello, and you ﬁake a
mold of their teeth. It takes about two minutes for it to set; you
take the mold oﬁt,_mix up what we call stone which is a powder and
a liquid, you pour this into the mold and in about thirty to forty-
five miﬁutes_you have a very accurate life size duplicate of these
people's dental structures. _

Q. And this method that you've just described is-generally
accepted in the dental community as a conclusive, a positive method
for obtaining a accurate duplication of someone's dentition, is
that correct?

A. Uh, yes; sir.

BY MR. ALLGOOD: May I approach the witness, your
_Honor?' |
BY THE COURT: You may. .

Q. I'm going to hand you a stone model, stone cast model,

with some paper in between it to prevent there from being an

chipping of the--of the model, and ask you to examine that and tell
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us if you can tell us what exactly that. is.
- A These are the dental stone models, what we call dental

study models, of Mr. Kennedy Brewer that were made up, uh, or

‘duplicated on fourteen May, ninety-two. This is an original from

eight May. Once you have one set of these, you can make up another
batch of Jello and take another impression and make more copies of
it._

Q. I believe it was necessary to make‘dﬁpliéations so that
the other expert'in this particular case could examine them, is
that correct? .

A. Yes, sir. We felt that'réther than just send off the
only set, we better duplicate them, so we'd keep a copy and send a
coby to, uh, the other experts; yés, sir.

Q. And those in facf are fair and accﬁrate reproductions of
the--the dentition of Kennedy Brewer as it existed back in May of
nineteen hundred and ninety-two, ié tﬁat correct?

A. Uh, vyes, éir.

BY MR. ALLGOOD: 'If your Honor plgase, we would
tender these as exhibits to this witness's testimony
at this time. |

' BY THE COURT: Being no objection, let them be
received and marked; Do you have‘sométhing to keep
them in‘so they will not-- A

BY MR. ALLGOOD: I do have a smhll box, your
Honox, but these things are very fragile; they break
rather easily. The only way to--to prevent them from
being just shaken to where they'll actually break would
be to actually wrap it in some type of paper and stuff

it in a box and I--I--I--1I've got enough over there that
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Q.

I might can accomplish this, but if it's still loose it
can still break.

BY THE COURT: You bgtter accomplish that somehow.

BY MR. ALLGOOD: Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT:. I don't want to have the court
reporter have to mark two separate--

BY MR. ALLGOOD: He is going to need that--to refer
to those I expect during some point, your Honor, bﬁt I
think I cah get a small box. |

4BY THE COURT: For the record, there are other
copies or'duplicates of these particular exhibits that
might be kept in safekeeping.

BY MR. ALLGOOD: If your Honor please, at this point
this is the only duplicate that I know of. The others I
have; uh, I think are broken. If your Honor.please, I
have prepared a box with some, uh, bubble wrab, some
tissue paper, I think for purposes here at this courtroom
they'll be sufficient as long as we're careful, and the
court reporter can mafk that particular boannd'insert
them in--into that box.

BY THE COURT: Mark the exbibit please, court
reporter. | ‘

(COURT REPORTER MARKS BOX CONTAINING DENTAL
IMPRESSIONS OF KENNEDY BREWER AS STATE'S EXHIBIT
NUMBER 32 IN EVIDENCE)

BY THE COURT REPORTER: Okay.

BY THE COURT: You may proceed.

Now after your, uh, taking these impreséions, when was

your next I guess you'd say interacﬁtion with the body of-
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_

A. Uh, the impressions were made on the eighth of May; the

-next day, the ninth of May, I took the impressions of these four

people and returned to the Rankin County Morgue'in Pearl, and
compared the, uh, dental study models to the patterns that we were
looking at on the body of _

Q. Now let's talk about your comparison, uh, process. How
did you go about making those comparisons? Explain that for the
ladies and gentlemen of the jury.

A. First off what you have to do is of course look at a
scrape or a bite or a pattern and try to determine, you know, is
this something of value, is——dé I believe this to be a bité mark or
could'it'be a bite mark. If so, you want fovphotograph that area

before anything is done, and you want to photograph it with a--what

- we call an ABFO Number 2 ruler which is an.L-shaped ruler, place it

on the body,‘try to do a perpendicular photograph. Uh, the purpose
of the ruler is so you can blow the pictures back up to'life4size,
uh, at a later pdint'in time. Once this is done you can now go in
and touch and examine the body; you want to make--uh, take spedial
care that you don't disrupt or cause any damage to the skin surface
by touching or looking at the,. uvh, patterns. Uh, we then looked at

what we call class characteristics, uh, in some of these areas.

Uh--
Q. Explain--uh, we're getting ahead of ourselvés——
A, Okéy.
'Q. --just a little bit, but since you've brought the term

up, uh, go ahead and explain for the ladies and gentlemen of the
jury the basis, if you will, for bite mark identification. You've

mentioned the term class characteristics; explain for the ladies
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and gentlemen of the jury what we're essentially talking about
here.

A. Okay. Most--most lay people understand the fact that you

can do an. identification of human remains through dental means

because everyone's teeth are unique. Uh, studies héve been done in
the general population and on twins, identical twins, and trying to
determine can you teil'who is A and who is B in this group of twins
simply by looking at their teeth as a method of identification.
Since teeth are unidque you open up the possibility that if these

teeth were hsed to bite or the impression of those teeth were left

-into some material, skin, cheese, other objects, you~migh£ be able

to go back and determine was this mark made by these teeth. 1It's,
if you woﬁld, it's kind of an extension of tool mark analysis, did
these teeth make this mark on this skin. Uh, as dentiéts, we study
teéth; uh, of course, that's--that's kind of obvious, but especial-
ly l1ike in the construction of dentures, uh, everyone's teeth there
are certain class characteristics, uh, that are exhibited by the
teeth and their strqcture. Class characteristics aié Eharacteris—

tics that-you would expect to find in a-certain group of objects.

"Like if I hadAa box with five regular blade screw drivers, whether

some of them were long or some wére short, some were wide, some are
narrow, they would all have the class chéracteristic of the blade
screw driver, where if I had another box that had Phillips head
screw.drivers, this would be a class characteristic, one is a.
blade, one is a Phillips. Now I have--may have five blade screw
drivers over here and five Phillips overAheré; maybe none of the
two Phiilips screw drivers are the same and maybe none of the two
Phil--uh, blade screw drivers are the sahe; they are separated by

class. The same thing about people's teeth and what we call
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arches, the upper jaw and the lower jaw. A class characteristic of
a jaw hay be what we call the arch fofm; some people have a very
semi—circulér.shaped_arch; some people have what we call a square
arch; it. comes up and goes across, has--almost have like corners.
Then we have what we call the vaulted or pointed vaults. I'm sure
you've——you've.seen individuals where their teeth--where they were

buck toothed, their teeth stuck out of their mouth. This would be

‘a vaulted arch. So if I was looking at, let's say,.we had a--a

sandwich and someone taken a~niqe bite out of it and the bite was
very U-shaped, very semi-circular, and I was given an individual
and they said, "Did this person bite this material,” and I look at
this person and hé's got a very pointed arch, ;t comes ta a point,
itfs'not a circle, I could look at that and say, "He is not of the
proper class. In other words, I'm looking for someone with a semi-
circular arch and this man has .a pointed arch." So I could
eliminate him as beiné the person'who had bitten this material.
The teeth themselves have class characteristiés. Uh, we name the
front four teeth incisors. Théy're called incisors because their

job is to cut into food, and they have the overall shape of a blade

.screw driver so you would expect the incisors of myself, the

incisors of someone else, if it was bitten into a pieée of material
to leave a characteristic éhape~usually like if you took a--a blade
screw driver and poked it into a piece of clay or wax and you'd gef
a long rectangular shape. This is a class characteristic for
incisors. Now again you may have wide incisors, you may have
narrow incisors; ﬁh, you may have what we call tapering, square,
square ovoid, different configurations within that class, but
compare that to the next tooth over which would be your eyetooth or

your canine. This is a pointed tooth; it's a, if you would, a
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fang, and its fgnction is to rip and tear. Usually if you see
someone bite into some ékin; an arm or whatever, you would find
that the incisors make that long rectangular mark where the canine
ﬁakes a trianqular in form mark on the skin.. There is a class
characteristic. You can look at this pattern and say, "This mark
is from an incisor; this mark is from a canine."- Uh, another class

characteristic would be how many teeth are present. Uh, the adult

“human has the possibility of having thirty-two teeth. Of course,

due to misuse, accidents, dental treatment, disease, sometimes we

lose our teeth, and if you had an individual, uh, say you were

-{gpkiﬁ@,at a ‘bite mark and there were five teeth present in the

mark and when you go back and-you look at yoﬁrvsuspect to see ‘did

he make this mark and this individual only had three teeth, he had

~two missing, there were gaps, -spaces, you could say it's--this

isn't the ﬁan who made this mark. Uh, one of the things,. the
prémises of the bite mark analysis is that ydu; first ;ntention is
to eliminate an individual. 'You want to look for things that you
can say, "It's not possible for this person to have made this mark
because his teeth's either'too'big, ihey're the wrong shape,
they're the wrong size, they're thé wrong number, they're the wrong
pdsitionf" It's muqh easier to exclude an individual from saying,

"This is the person who made that." I would imagine in my career

for every time I've made a inclusive opinion, in other words, "I

believe ﬁhis person made this mark with his teeth," there are
probably ten that I havg eliminated and said, "It's not possible
for this person to have made that mark with his teeth."”

Q. As a matter of fact in this particular case, what
conclusions were you able to determine insofar as Leshone Williams,

Dewayne Graham, and Gloria Jackson were concerned?
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JA. In this situation my analysis showed me I was of the

opinion that neither quria Jackson, Dewayne Graham or Leshone

Williams could have made -these marks on <_'s body.

'Q. "All right. Now you——yoﬁ've told them what class™

' characteristics are and you have I think touched perhaps on

individual characteristics in some respects, but if you would

explain for the ladies'and gentlemen of the jury what an individual

characteristic is and what part it plays in the'analysis of a--of

a wound pattern} bite mark( tool mark.

A. An individual characteristic is a characteristic thatA
falls under the category of usually random wear and ﬁear. If you
bought, uh, two new écrew drivers that you took right off the shelf
and you took one écrew driver and mashed it into wax, you took the
othér screw driver and mashed it into wax and you looked at the
patterns left by tﬁese two'screw driveré, since they didn't have
any individualizing characteristics it would be almost impossible
to say which was screw driver A and which was screw driver B, but
now let's give one screw driver.td a c&rpenter and the other screw
driver to an electrician and we send them off for a couple of years
and they do their work. They come back and they give us screw
driver A and they give.us screw driver B. Well in screw drivér A
we find that one of the corners has been chipped off from prying
action,‘using it to pry something open, the.blade of the screw
driver breaks, and then. let's say in the other case, uh, the blade
of the screw driver has been bent or warped so that it's twisted
and turned,.maybe has a dog-ear on it. These random wear and tear

on these instruments make these instruments unique because of their

‘individual characteristics. Now that screw driver A is no longer

identical to screw driver B, you could press them into wax and very
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easily, due to one.being chipped and the other 6ne being warped, -
sday, "Yes, this is screw driyer B that made this mark; screw driver
A made that mark.” Now in human teeth we have individualizing
characteristics. The class characteristics kind of fall into, is
your tooth in its right position or is it a little bit further back

or does it stick out too far, does it sit straight on like it

should or is it rotated this way or is it rotated that way. An

" individualizing characteristic would be, has this tooth got a chip,

has it been broken, has, uh, there been a.cavity in this tooth, has
the tobth been worked on by a dentist and a filling placed in it,
plus, uh, as we get older the old term, "long in the tooth," 'uh,
children, uh, tﬁree or four years old, you knoﬁ; if you've ever
been bitten by a small child, you'll know how sharp'their teeth
are; as théy grow older they wear thosé teeth down. We call this
attrition. Uh, és you get older into your sixties and seventies,
you may know someone whose teeth they've literally ground them

down, they're just flat across, there's a lot of excessive wear.

Tt's this normal attrition plus chipping your teeth, having decay

or having them worked on, that now'makes your teeth unique. Of
course,'the more chips or missinglteeth or frac;ures or unique
features about your t&oth make it more individualized, and usually,
like I say, an--an individualizing characteristic is a feature on
that tooth that you have to, you know, pay a special-attention to.
It may not be very gross or obvious that there's a small minute
fracture or crack in this tooth and you're moving in on a much
closer Sscale. You try to eliminate as many people'as you can
through class charactéristics. Then you start looking at your

individual characteristics and see, well in this position, we give

each tooth a number; we start in the corner up here and call that
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tooth number one, go around to'tooth number sixteen, down to
seventeen and around to thirty-two. Sé_when me or any other
forensic dentist talks about - tooth number éight, we're talking
about the front tooth here, uh, the big central incisor. If you
look at'yodr bite mark pattern and you see that that tooth that

should be in position number eight is four millimeters across, two

- millimeters wide and appears to be rotated, let's say a twenty

degree angle, uh, that's what you see in the bite mark pattern. If
you're given three people and ydu look at their models and one
person, his tooth is six millimeters and your--your mafk is four,
well you can say well his footh is too big to have made that, and
then you find another one, but his tooth is straight and your mark
is' curved, you can eliminate him. But let's say your third person,
his tooth is four-millimeters acfoss and it's twenty degrees in

rotation, well, of course, you would keep him on as being possible.

" Then you'd go back and look and see did you-have any characteris-

tics; there may be a very small one milliméter chip on the cutting
edge of that tooth; if you can go back and look at-your pattern and
in the right position of your wound pattern you have that little
chip,‘a mafk or dip,_ahd it matches your tooth, now you have the
ability to say within reasonéble scientific certainty this tooth is
what made this mark.

Q. Now insofar--after having given us that--that thumbnail,
so to speak, ofj—of sketch of the general analysis of bite marks,
tool marks, uh, injury and wound patterns,-Doqtor, yqu've-already
said that what you did, I think we'd gotten to the point was that
you had started saying you started looking to see if anything was
in fact, uh,.a——a bite mark, anything that could fit into that

category which could be a bite mark; uh, you had gotten to that
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part in'your process, if you would continue from that point and
elaborate for the jury, if you would, the process, the procedures
you followed in this particular case.

A. Uh, first off let me--let me explain this term bite mark.
Uh, you may from hearing this term think that what we're talking
about is someone biting another person. That can happen and often
is the case, but we kind of generiéall&-use_the term bite mark also
to mean, uh, let's say an individual strikeé yoﬁ in the mouth and
your teeth cut his hand, even though you didn't bite him, that is

what -we call a bite mark or a tooth mark. Uh, it's not to imply

‘that biting had to occur. Uh, we then go through and we look for

what we callAprototypical bite marks. A prototypical bite mark is,

'uh, something that a lay person could probably see. If you took

and held your arm out and bit yourself and then stood back and
looked 'at it, you would see you'd'havé-a—4usually a nice upper U-
shaped-arch and a niée lower U-shaped arch. This is what we call

a prototypical bite mark. Uh, you see them a lot in test results

and in isolated, uh, situations, but that's not always the pattern

that's left by teeth. Sometimes you'll have variations in what we
call the péridem-~excuse me--paradigmatic bite mark which is just
an atypical bite mark. Yéu could think of it‘iike taking a rake
and dragging it through the sand. 1If you've ever been out raking
leaves in the dirt and the sand, if you take a rake and drag it
through the sand, you'll see the pattern that's left as it. comes
across, and whether it be straiéht or at an.angle or zigzaggy you
can look with--with your eyes and see is it possible for this rake
to have made this mark in the dirt. Your bite mafk analysis is
very similar to that insomuch that you want to look and see because

you have to consider the orientation and dynamics of what's going
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on, why do you think this person bit this other person. Uh, unless

-you're  an odontologist like myself, I've had quite a number of

volunteers that.we've sedated, uh, had bite marks inflicted on

" their arm and then we sit back and photograph them and study them

for several weeks or months, those are usually, uh, your prototypi-
cal bite marks, nice U-shaped archés. .You don't see that in a life
and death-combative struggle. 'Uh, if I have a volunteer who'll
hold his.qrm, we'll wash it and such and he'll try to brace himself

and somebddy will bite their arm and he'll stand there and try to

hold it as best he'can, then, you know, he’'ll tell us stop and

we'll get that nice bite mark pattern. That's very different from
someone attacking another individual because when they're bitteh;
if the victim cén, what they will try to-do is free themselves; we
have a figﬁt going on, uh, and usually someone'is_fightiﬁg for
their life and in a-iot of these situations these bites are very
painful. Uh, I've been sedated, I've been bitten, uh, I can attest
that biting can be very, very painful from time to time, and unless

you're trying to sit there and make yourself withstand this so that

-yod get a niée research bite mark, you're going to find that you're

going to pull away, and as you pull away, let's say, someone's
bitéen me on the w;ist, my‘first reaction is to pull 6r get my arm
out of this man's mouth, and of coufse the teeth bite down and drag
as this tissue is pulled out from the, uh, clasp of their jaws.
The other thing you've got, of course, take into considefation is
the postural positioning of the individual. Uh,'skin is eléstic,
and you can take -and put a patternf draw a circle or a design on
someone's arm, especially 1e£'s say the bicep area, we draw a
éircle here, depending if I hold my arm out straight or if I flex

it or if I curve it like this, you can see of course how my jacket
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folds. The skin is going to distort and stretch, and of course
usually in a--in a life and death combative struggle, you've got a
lot of ﬁoveﬁent, a lot of struggling, sé you.shoﬁidn't really look
for thiS'nice.prototypicél bite mark. It'd be like ﬁe taking a
rubber stamp and coming ovef here and stamping a sheet of paper and
then someone else coming up and doing like that. Don't expect to
find a nice rubber stamp in these combative4sitﬁations. So the
first thing I-do is to look to see do I have any bite marks that
are close to being, uh, proﬁotypical. Uh, it's what I like to call
a--a patterned injury. A patterﬁed injury is an injury that when
you look at it, it Q;ves you an idea of what.happenéd. After
eighteen years of iooking at bite marks, I'm a little bit better
than the lay person at looking a£ é mark and saying, "That could be
a--have been caused by teeth."” I don't have to see juét this nice
U-shape. If I see.a pattern that could have been caused by teeth,
the first thing I want to qo‘is go through m& class characteris-
tics. If vae got an individual that's7from his eyetooth to
eyetooth is .forty millimeters and my bite mark is only thirty
millimeters, then I can say, "Hey, that doeén't look like, you
know} Ildon't think this quy could make this mark.” But if my bite
mark is forty or so millimeters, my teeth that I'm looking at are
forty or so miilimeters, then I proceed on to the next, yoﬁ know,
well how many teeth are involved or are they in the right pesition,
and the--the best way to do this comparison is to eliminate
duplicating errors. Evéry time you copy aﬁ object you incorporate
some error. Right now the best way to document a wound pattern on
skin is through photography. Even though that is the best way it
involves distortion of the object because you're trying to take a

three dimensional object and reduce it to two dimensions, a
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photographic image. The other thing is skin will give, it's
fiexible, it'll wiggle and méve where a photograph won't do that.
So to eliminate and keep the most minimum -error possible, you're
probably your most accurate analysis is to take the stone denfal
models that you have of .your suspect and'go and compare them
directly to the skin of the victim and then photograph the

relatidnship between those stone models and the pattern you f£ind on

the skin. . 4 | ’
Q. I think a technique called dipect comparison among--
A. Yes, sir.
Q. ~--I believe your brothers in the forensic odontological

profession, is that correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Go ahead, Doctor. What did you do--in thisAparticularl
case, did you in fact perform that direct comparison with those
working models to the injuries which you found on this little girl?

A. Yes, sir.. Uh, my original opinion about, you know, how
mény of these ﬁarks could pdssibly be bipe marks, I saw maybe three
or four that right off the bat I said, "These could possibly be
bite marks." . And so I started comparing the--the study models,
some of them I said no, this couldn't possibly be the one and go to
the next, and on the ones that I said, you know, "ThisAlooks like
a nice match."” The--of c¢ourse, I'm talking about the models of
Kennedy Brewer. I looked to see, number. one, did tﬁe class
characteristics match, were there any individuaiizing characteris-
tics in his teeth that shéw up in the pattern, and if so, then I
want I want to téke and verf carefully set the teeth on that piece
of tissue and back it off just a millimeter or two, and then take

a bhotograph to try to show the leading edges of the teeth and the
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leading edgés of the bite so that one could look at this and come
to their own opinion, did this tooth make this mark in this skin,-
and we went through and photographed those. Uh, later we-had many
other marks on the girl's body and the question that we wanted to
answer was, number one, could these marks been made by these teeth
or could they have Eeen made by someone else's; in other words, am

I looking at a situation where I have one or two attackers, and we

went through and looked at the other areas. When we were finished

wé had found nineteen areas on the little girl's bédy; uh, out of
those five are what I would consider your very good bite marks, and

the other fourteen étarted, uh, from fair to average ox--or poor.

Uh, I did not find any bifef-any<marks on the little girl‘'s body
that I’considered cduld be human bite marks that I couid not equate
to Mr. Brewer;

Q. Now insofar as this process that you have gone through,
this process of--of making these comparisons énd photographing the
results and comparing these class characteristics with theée
individual characteristics, uh, fhe——this procesé, is it generally’
accepted in the forensic odontological community as being positive
and conclusive for the comparison of bite marks, wound analysis,
uh, things of that nature?"

BY MR. KESLER: Object to the form of the question

as conclusive; generally accepted is not objectionable,

but--
BY THE COURT: Rephrase your question and I'l1l allow
it.
Q. Is it generally dcceptéd in the forensic odontof-~-I have

difficulty with that word--forensic odontological community as the

technique to use for these types of comparisons?
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' A, Yes, sir. I'd have to say so because I believe in
nineteen eighty-nine, nineteen ninety, I, uh, publishéd an article
in the Amerxican Academy of Fgrensic-Sciences Peer Review Journal on
direct comparisons, the video taping of the direct comparisons for
courtroom presentation, and I've seen numerous articles and
presentations on direct ﬁomparisons video and--and, ﬁh; still
photography of this technique.: .
Q. Now just éo there won't be some confusion among the jury,

just so they'll understand, uh, there is some controversy over

direct comparison technique, is that correct?

A. I have not found any topic that we have a hundred.percent
agreement on in dentistry_orlforensic dentistry. Uh, you always
have other doctors who feel one technique is better than another, .
and, uh, as I say, I don't--yeah, there's going--you're going?—it's
easy to find other doctors.who say, "Well_I don't like to do it
that way, T want to do it this way." But there's been no studies
or publications saying that it's improper. It is accepted'ih the

methodology guidelines of the American Board of Forensic Odontqlo;

gy.

Q. Now insofar as this examination was concerned, you have

already testified that. you photegraphed it and videoed it, is that

correct?
A. Yes,Asif.
| BY MR. ALLGOOD: Méy I approach the witness, your
Honor? ' |
BY THE COURT: You ﬁay.
(ITEM SHOWN TO DEFENSE ATTORNEYS)
Q.' I am going to now hand you a series of black and white

photographs; it is a large number of photographs. I'm going to ask
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you to look at those and tell us if you can identify that for us,
please.

A.. (Witness thumbs throﬁgh photographs) Yes, sir. These
are the photographs I believe, what, a hundred and thirteen,
somewhere in fhaﬁ neighborhood, quite a numbér of black and white

photographs that I took of the, uh--not onl_y'the body of _

- but of the comparison of the dental - study models of

Kennedy Brewer and the body of _

Q. And are those photographs, photographs you either
personally took or photogréphs that you we;e present when they were
taken?

A. Yes, six. I either took them or they were taken under mf

supervision; yes, sir.

Q. And are they in fact fair and accurate reproductions of
those compa:isons and those marks and those patterns as they
existed on that date? -

A. Yes,.sif, fhey are.,

BY MR. ALLGOOD: If your Honor please, we would

' tender these an exhibit to tﬁis witness's testimony at
this time--composite, your Honor.

BY THE COURT: Let them be received and marked. I'm
‘'going to ask the jury to step back into the jury room
while these exhibits are being marked. We'll take a -
recess while the court reporter is actually marking the
exhibit. If you would, please step back into the jury
room.

(JURY OUT)
BY THE COURT: (To the witness) During this recess

you may step down from the witness stand. Please do not
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. discuss ybuf testimony with any oﬁher'witness during this
recess. ‘ | ‘
A, Your Honor.
BY THE COURT: Yes,

'A.' I've had a request from the district attorney of

‘Hernando, Desota County, uh, when I leave here I'm supposed to

teétify over there in another case. Uh, the defense expert in that
case is also Doctor Souviron. Uh--
‘ ‘BY THE COURT: I'm aware of that.

A. Okay. He has the photogréphs and models-that are the
evidence in the Hernando County case. The district attorney‘wanted
me to be able to ask the defense attorneys, number one, do they
know if Doctor Souviron's going to be here today, and if so, when
I finish this could I meét with Doctor Souviron to coliéct that
evidence, take it to Hernaﬁqo cause it has to be introduced under
my testimony. | .

BY THE COURT: He's supposed to fly in at about--

_BY MR. KESLER: Ten--ten-fifteen; his flight has
arrived; my paralegal has gone to pick him up. I--I--I
do ﬁot know ahything about him being——bringing‘evidence
"back for the other case, but certainly he will. be here
and will be available; Doctor West'can talk to him.

BY THE COURT: Fine. Does that answer that
gquestion?

A, fes, sir.

| BY MR. ALLGOOD: If your Honor please, before we go
off the record there is one other thing. I intend to
introduce the color video which was made also. I doubt

defense counsel will object. I--they have informed me
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that they're interested ih having it introduced also;
however, there is conversation on this wvideo; uh, there
is comments made by Doctor West, made by some of his
assistants and things of that nature which, uh,‘may very

well be of a nature that would be considered editorial-

izing and things of that nature. Uh, I think in all

fairness that the sound should noﬁ be allowed, the-~-the
audio portion of the tape should be, uh--it can't be

eraseﬁ, there's no way to do that, but it should just be
turned down during the playing of the tape. Uh, that is

my request of the Court. I do this before defense

counsel to see if there's any objection to such or any-

thing of that nature.
BY THE COURT: Will you discuss that with him
during the .recess.
~ BY MR. KESLER: Vehement objection.

' BY THE COURT: You discuss that with him during the

-recess. The next question that I have is that there have

been, what, the witness has said a hundred and nineteen?

BY THE COURT REPORTER: Thirteen. |

BY MR.' ALLGOOD: Thirteen.

BY MR. KESLER: Thirteen.

BY THE.COURT: Excuse me. --thirteen photographs
that have been tendered as exhibit. -Are these photo-
graphs to be used individually?

BY MR. ALLGOOD: Some of them will be used
individually, your Honor.

BY THE COURT: If they're to be used individually,

they must be marked individually so that the witness can
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identify which photograph his testimony is concerning.

BY MR. ALLGOOD: I understand that, your Honor.

If your Honor please, it appearé from defense counsel's
respénse that there is going to be--

BY THE COURT: Let's stay with the photographs
first.

BY MR. ALLGOOD: Yes, sir,

BY THE COURT: Give me time on tﬁat. Court
reporter, there is--you can step down if you'a like.

(WITNESS LEAVES WITNESS STAND)

BY. THE COURT: There is no other alternative that
I‘know_of-ofher than to label each of these photographé
individually -so that when the district attorﬁey is
allowing the witness to teétiﬁy, he can identify which
exhibit he is using as a basis ﬁof that testimony. I
would ask during this recess that defense counsel and
attorney for the State gét with the,court reporter to
see 1f there is any methodolégy that can be employed to
shorten that process. - |

Now another matter has been brought up while the
jury is out that the State proposés to intréduce a video.
Is that correct?

BY MR. KESLER: Yes, sir.

BY MR.'ALLGOOD: Yes, sir,-your Honor.

BY THE COURT: And that video is the examination of
this body. The defendant will interpose an objection to
the introduction of the video. .

BY MR. KESLER: No, sir. But we're going to object

to only a portion, that being the video and not the
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audio, being given. If it's going to come. in as evidence
they're going to hear the whole thing.

BY THE COURT: Oh, you--you do--

BY MR. KESLER: If he plays it without the sound,
then I'm going to play it in case in chief with the sound
and I think that's silly. | |

BY THE COURT: Then the suggestion of the State that
they just show it aﬁd‘not have the sound is what you
object ﬁo—— |

BY MR: .KESLER: Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT: --not to the video itself?

BY MR. KESLER: Oh, we want it in, the whole thing,
sound, everything.

BY MR. ALLGOOD: If your Honor please, at this
point then the State feels it must make a motion. I'm

going to make--move thé,Court to review the tape in

‘chambers and move the Court to exclude the audio for the

extraneous material that is on the audio.
~ BY MR. KESLER: Your Honor, I'd--the only thing I
can say this--this, uh, video 'is going to be evidence

that is part of the basis of the--or the foundation of

‘the--the expert's opinion, and, uh--and it's all

admissible. Just because they're talking on it, it's
not hearsay. It is the evidence--'

BY THE COURT: What is it that is a probiem or with
what is said by.the physicians as they do the--what is
it that's--

- BY MR. ALLGOOD: If your Honox please, it is a, if

you will, problem of perception. There will be conversa-
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1 tion between the--the doctor and his assistants as he is

2 doing this, sometimes which may be somewhat,.shall we
3 say, colorful. .There will be, uh, music being played in -
4 the Background, all of which has nothing to do with the
5 comparisons of the--of the marks to the body. I know
6 that this Court has had this issue presented to it before
7 and the audio portion has not been played for the jury
8 in those circumstances. 1In any event, your--
9 BY THE COURT: Let mé~ask this questiqn: is the
10 introduction of ﬁhis video in evidence necessary to form
11 the bésis of this expert's opinion?
12 BY MR. ALLGOOD: 1In all candor, no, your Honor.
13 : BY THE COURT: Get it set up so the Couft can sée
14 the film please during ﬁhis recess.
15 BY MR. ALLGOOD: We can bring that inté your
16 . » chambers or'we can do it out hére, your Honor. What's
17 fhe Court's pleasure?
18 | . BY MR. KESLER: I have one that'll roll that's a
19 good size television.
20 : BY THE COURT: Bring it in chambers then. Court is
.21 ' in recess.
22 : ~ (RECESS)
23 (COURT REPORTER MARKS ONEAHUNDRED AND TWENTY-ONE
24 (121) BLACK AND WHITE PHOTOGRAPHS OF VICTIM'S BODY AS
25 STATE'S EXHIBIT NUMBER 33(1-121) IN EVIDENCE)
26 * Kk ok k kK k k Kk k%
27 FOLLOWING THE RECESS, ALL MEMBERS OF THE COURT, INCLUDING THE

28 JUDGE, COURT REPORTER, ATTORNEYS, CLERK, BAILIFFS, AND THE

29 DEFENDANT BEING PRESENT, THE FOLLOWING PROCEEDINGS WERE HAD:
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BY THE COURT: Court reporter, for the record, the

'State has offered into evidence a video with audio sound

also contained on the:video of an examination in the
morgue-of the cadaver of Christine Jackson, the minor
victim in this case. The video is in color with the
sounds, comments and background noises in the autopsy

room. The video depicts the placement of dental

- impressions on and about the cadaver of this child. The

Court finds the video pérticularly gruesome and macabre.
I do note that the physicians and persons in atﬁendance
seemed rather callous and were carryiﬁg on conversations
unrelaﬁed to thié particular case, but I am told that is
not unusual among ph&sicians even in surgery on living
patients. There was a background music from a radio
playing that I assume defense counéel wishes introduced
because it appears to be inappropriate for the task that
thé individuals were about at the time. The Court, after
viewing this video, 1is of thelopinioﬁ that it in its
entirety should not be introduced in this caée as the
State has stated to the Court that this video is not such
as would allow the expert to form any opinion from it
since he actually did the examination himself. The color
video and manipulation of the cadaver of this three year

old infant in some stage of decomposition, the Court

finds should not be viewed by the jury in this case,-and

that its prejudiéial effect would outweigh any relevance
in this matter. The Court has already allowed the
introduction of black and white photographs depicting

portions of skin and body parts used during the examina-
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tion énd pu;ported.identification feels that under the
circumstances that is sufficient. The--excuse me--the
court reporter is having some difficulty.

(BRIEF PAUSE IN PROCEEDINGS)

BY THE COURT: What was my train of thought when I
stopped?

BY THE COURT REPORTER: You were talking about the
probative value of the video.

BY THE COURT: It is not sufficient to outweigh its
prejudice given the fact that the black and white photo—
graphs have been introduced; .The in camera inspection
did reveal a certain - degree of callousneés of the
individuals doing the filming and manipulation of this

cadaver, and the background music might be construed to

. be inappropriate for the occasion. But in any event the

Court feels that it is unnecessarily gruesome and macabre

and will not allow its introduction after having viewed
the tape in its entirety.

Now it has not formally been offered yet. I would

_not expect it to be offered because of the Court's ruling

. by the State.

BY MR. ALLGOOD: It will not be offered by the State
in response .to the Court's ruling, your Honor.
BY THE COURT: Did ybu want something in the record
at this time, Mr. Kesler?-
 BY MR. KESLER: I want the tape in the record in--in
case there's any need for review.
BY THE COURT: I would ask that the State supply the

court reporter with the tape viewed by the Court in
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camera and have it marked for identification purposes at
this time. '

(COURT REPORTER MARKS VIDEO TAPE AS DEFENDANT'S
EXHIBIT NUMBER 34 FOR IDENTIFICATION)

BY THE COURT REPORTER: Okéf.

BY_MR. KESLER: With all due respect, uh, I am not
arguing with the Court, I understand the Court's ruling
and of course I will obey the Court’s ruling, but I
simpiy wanted to piaée something additionai in the
record if 1 éould.

BY THE CQURT: You may.

BY MR. KESLER: - I'd like the record to reflect that
I brought to the Court’'s attention what I thought were
relevant 1egal.authorities on the issue of autopsy
photograpﬁé, that being Noe, N-O-E, versus State, 616
So.2d 298, Hurns, H—U—R—N-S, versus State, 616 So.2d 313,
Alexander versus State, 610 So.2d 320, Mackbee, M—A—C-K—
B-E-E, versus State, 575 So.2d 16, and would likeito
state for the record that the defeﬁdant feels that the
tape has probative value to the defense in that the tape
underscores the defense expert's opinion that the wound
patterns on the body are not bite marks gt al;, but are
other--other trauma, decoméosition, result of decomposi-
tion, skin slippage and that the tape shows-that-the
models have-to be manipulated in a manner where it would
be physically impossible for a humén*-normal human jaw
to approach the surface of the body in such a manner.
Thank you, your Honor, for letting me make that record.

BY THE COURT: The Court's ruling is the same. The
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Court feels that the series of black and white photo-
graphs of the wounds and the dental impressions is
sufficient.

Let's get the witnéss back on the witness stand.
(DOCTOR MICHAEL WEST RETURNS TO WITNESS STAND)
BY THE COURT: Show the ‘jury in, please.i
(JURY IN)
BY THE COURT: You méy proceed.

DIRECT EXAMINATION CONTINUES BY MR. ALLGOOD:

Q. Doctor, now in these particular photographs there is a,

uh, measuring implement that shows up in--in many of them in any

event. Explain for the ladies and gentlemen of the jury what that

~is and why you do that.

A. There's an L-shaped ruler, we refer to it as the ABFO

Number 2; uh, the ABFO Number 1 was just a simple ruler. We had

contacted a photographic expert and asked him to devise us a scale

that we could put in a photograph so that when a picture was taken
this picture could latér be blown up to life size, énd he designed
the, uh, ABFO Number 2 which is two of those»ruiers, one, you know,
hooked together to make an L, and it's placed in the photograph for
that purpose. It's been acpeptéd by the board and many other
ageﬁcies as far as a photographic étandard of scale.

Q. And I believe that is part of the guidelines, part of the
requiremenﬁs that when y'all take such photography as we have here
that the measuring devides be in at least those portions which are
measuring the, uh--the wounds themselves so that there can be some
objective measurement to know exactl& what-the distances are and
things of that nature. 1Is that correct?

A, Yes, sir.
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Q. Docﬁor, insofar as the wounds themselves, did you form an

‘opinion based on a--the training and experience in your field of

medicine to a reasonable dental certainty I think as to whether or
not these wounds were in fact perimortem in nature?

A. Yes, sir, I did.

Q. 'And what is that opinion and if you would explain for the
iadies and gentlemen of the jury what perimortem means and why you
hold to that opinion.

A. When we talk about antemortem, perimortem, or post-
mortem, what we're talking about iS‘wheﬁ did something happen in
relationship to a death. Antemortem is ﬁhings that occur while
you’fe alive; postmortem are things that occur aftér' you die;
perimortem is thatlbrief period in between the time or at the time
of your death. If you»tooktan individual who was alive and slapped
them on the arm with a ruler, that afea would turn red and swell.
Uh, when someone dies.we take it that'their heart stops or their
brain funé¢tion sﬁops.- The body as a whole dies in different
stages; that'é the reason why we have; you know, pebple being able
to donate kidneys and livers and eyes and--and such.' Uh, one of
the things that takés a few minutes, if you.would, I mean from the
instant your heart stops, how long does it take before'your skin no
longer responds.or is alive even though the body or the person is
dead. IfHYOu had a person hooked up to a heart machine and, you
know, you've seen it on television where it goes beep, ybu know,
his heart is no longer beating. If you took a ruler and slapped
that individual on tﬁe arm immediately when that happened, even
though he was dead, you would see a red streak come up on his skin.
Now it varies; if--if you took and slapped someone with a ruler

five minutes before they died or if you slapped with the ruler five
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minutes after they died, before or after, I couldn't come back at
a later time and look at that and tell you it was before death or
after death; .it's just too narrow of a window to be able to make
that concern. So we use the term perimortem to describe injuries
that occur at the time of death as opposed to, say, an individual
had been dead for several hours and then some trauma, a cut, a
gunshot, or a slap is applied to the body, that would look
different than if you did it during the perimortem or antemortem

phaée.

Q. Now insofar as this particular--these particular wound
patterns that you found on the body of this child, once again,. what
was your opinion to a reasonable med—-medical' cert--dental
certainty wheth--whether or not it was in fact perimortem oxr not?

A, In my opinion in this case these woundé were perimortem.

Q. Why? Explain that for the ladies and gentlemen of the
jury. '

A. Any time that you may bruise yourself or scratch yourself
or cut yourself, you will of course notice that certain changes
un--are undergone. Uh, the bruise may come up and look red, then
it'll turn blue and as it ages it'll go through green, yellow and
kind. of, YOu know, fade ocut, and this may take a couple of déys or
a couple of weeks. ﬁh,'if you cut yourself you will start the
inflammatory resp‘)onsel which is the first part of the healing
response; it swells up, it gets red, it respondé. Uh, if you take
someone whose béen. dead two or three hours, of course, this
response is no longer viable in the skin and you can cut somebody
and you won't see swelling or an inflammatory reacfion. If, of
course, this'inflammatory reaction kind of fades over, maybe five

to ten minutes, there's a lot of debate amongst the physiologists
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énd pathologists as to how long this actually persists after the
heart stops, but usually what you look for in a perimortém wound is
a wound that has just started into the inflammatory response.
There may be little or no inflammation, :edness, swelling; uh, you
wouldn't expect to see healing, a scab, formed on a perimortem
wound where if you had some trauma inflicted on this person the day
or'two before they died, you would expect to see it in a much more
advanced stage of inflammation or scab or eschar formation;

Q. And in thiS'particular case, due to the nature of the
wound, you hold the opinion that you do; is that correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, Doctor, you of course identified I think an area,
uh, a total of nineteen, is that correct-- »

A. Yes, sir, nineteen aréas.

Q. --marks? .

| BY MR. ALLGOOD: May I approach the witness, your
Honor? | |
BY THE COUIAQT:F You may.

Q. I'h handing'you, Doctor, what has been labeled a series
of photographs labeled Statg'é in Evidence Numbers 33-1 through 33-
26, and ask you if you would to examine those. I believe these are

photographs which were selected prior to this trial by myself and

- some others for use for demonstrative use before the jury. Is that

correct?
A. Yes, sir.
BY MR. ALLGOOD: If your Honor pleaée, may the
witness be allowed to come dan'from the witness stand
and present these to the jﬁry as he testifies in the next

few minutes?
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BY THE COURT: He'll be allowed to stand down from
the witness stand. Refer to each photograph that he does
use in his testimony by exhibit number. Please feel free
to move if you need to move, counsel, to see the exhibit
and to see the matter that the witness is testifying to.

BY MR. ALLGOOD: We will neéd a--

-BY MR. KESLER: Yes, sir.

BY MR. ALLGOOD: We will need a microphone, your
Honor, over there by the jury if we‘coﬁld-—~

BY THE COURT: The bailiff will tend to that for
?oﬁ. You may stand down.

(WITNESS MOVES TO FRONT OF JURY BOX)

BY THE COURT: You may proceed.

BY MR. ALLGQOD: Thaﬁk you, your Honor. If I can
have the Court's indulgence just for one minute.

Q. Doctor, I am handing you now a series of four photo-
graphs, that which has previously been marked as State's Exhibit
33-7, State's Exhibit 33-1, .33-26, and 33-25, and ask you to
identify those for us, please, sir. |

A. These are black and white photograéhs of me placing the
dental study models, the stone models, of Kennedy Brewer on the,
uh, I believe it's the lower right.thigh qf Christina.Jackson.
There was a mark on her leg and I wanted to compare to see how did
his teeth compare to this mark. Uh, like I said, I'm not trying to
take these teeth and but them in the actual biting position. In
other words--may I.haye the models?
| BY MR. ALLGOOD: .May I obtain those for--for the

witness, your Honor?

BY THE COURT: You may.
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Q. Doctor, I'm handing you now what has been marked State's
in Evidence Number 32 which is the box containing the models of
Kennedy Brewer. |
A. What I have in my hand, this is the dental study model of
Kennedy Breﬁer's teeth. We fook the Jello, made a mold of his
teeth, took--mixed up the stone and poured it in there, and allow

this to, uh, turn hard, and it's a life size and fairly accurate,

"as impressions go, uh, representation of his teeth. Now let's look

" at his teeth first. Uh, we have four incisors, those are the screw

driver shaped teeth in the front that cut with; then we have the
two eyeteeth, canines, the fangs, the pointed ones, and then behind
those.we have the premolars, the ones with the ﬁwo bumps on them.
Now this is important for this réason, you have to think about the
dynamics, it's the interplay between the teeth and the skin while
this assault -is going on, and this is very important because while
this individuél is alive their flesh and their tissue is flexible.
I can take and pinch up the tissue here on my arm to simulate a
biﬁe. jNow'after death the skin loses this elasticity, uh, you
kndw, the patient--the victim will go into rigor mortis, the body
becomes cold and stiff, and you die, it's not flexible anymore, and
that's very important in understanding these photographs for this
reason, when the bite occﬁrred, the skin was able to bunch up and
flex so in reality if I had a bite mark on my arm and I wanted to

put the models on the arm, I would have to put them in the, you

know, the anatomical position of the way the bite occurred which

would be, let's say, in this position. Now the area that I'm

interested in, in these photographs is where the edges of these

~teeth come in contact with the skin. Now you can see I've pressed

‘the models on my arm and have got a--a very faint 1little indenta-
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tion there, and what I want to do is, if I put the models back in
the exact position the way théy were when it was bitten, you can't
see where the teeth and the skin come together. If you want to see
that area, instead of having it in fhis position; you have to lay
the teeth down like this, rotate them so that you can see the area
where the teeth and the skin come together. Now you'll notice that
space there in the middle caused--that's what a call a diastema;
it's just a fancy name for a gap, but what I want £o try to do is
not photograph them from the actual biting.position, but lay the
teeth back like so, so that now you can see the teeth just opposing
the indentation. So don'£ think that this is, "Well you're telling
me his teeth were exactly like this when that happened?" No. His
teeth were probably like this, but because I've lhst the flexibili--
ty of the skin and because I w«;:mt to show where the two came
together, I have to rotate ﬁhem down like that. Now in these
photographs we}ll see, of course, the.teéth; right underneath those
teeth you'll see a dark line; that dark line is of the scar or
pattern that I'm trying to analyze. Here I have £he teeth sitting

just about on it, and here I've moved them back and we're looking

~at this dark line here. And what I've done is piace them on there

and then slowly move them back, take a picture, move them back,

take a picture, move them back, take a picture, and then look to

See which one of these shows me or gives me the opportunity to see

the most correlation.

Q. Explain for the ladies and gentlemen of the jury why you
moved them back. Explain what that motion is for and why you're
doing that.

A. Biting is a very dynamic situation. As I said earlier,

I'm not taking a rubber stamp and just placing it here on my arm
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and then coming straight off. What we're seeing is someone is

biting and this person’s pulling awéy so what we've actually got is

-the skin is dragging out from under the teeth so we get this drag

mark, if you would. What I'm trying to do ié to re—simuiate that
action aﬁd show how this pattern is'progressing from the motion of
the teeth. Now before I get into the very minute détails in these
photographs, let ﬁe poiﬁt out some things that you want to look at
in these phbtographs.. Now Mr. Bréwer's teeth, he has a fairly
uniform arch shape; that looks like a pretty'good semi-circle, a U-
shape, pretty eﬁen, pretty straight around, so.as far as arch fﬁrm
he has what we call a--a uniform semi~circle. Now notice he does
have some spaces not only in the--the big one in between the front
teeth, but he also has some minor spaces in between what we call
the laterals, the second teeth over, and we can see that they liné
up fairly straight; notice these teeth are flat.here,.these are
turned a little that way, these are this way, of coursé, plus we
want to look at the actual cutting edges of these téeth. Uh, let
me get just a littie piece of tissue here to put behind this tooth.

Now we've just talked about'the'general characteristics. If you'll

look here on this front tooth, and I'm going to put a small dot on

it right there, notice that this chip,-thefe's a leading edge right
here that's chipped, very minute, but there is a leading edge right
there that's chipped. This tooth with the dot, there's a small
little chié or wear area here on this tooth, the one with the dot,
that little area, and if you look at them from the back side or
what we call the iinguals, ydu can--it's kind of difficult, but you
can make out that little chip right there at that area. If you

see, we have that little chip right there, an uneven spot. This is

what we call an intra-dental feature. Remember I talked_about the
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chipping, the wearing, the grinding down of teeth, these are the
things. I could probably find several of us in here who has a
front tooth that's that size and fairly that shape, but to find one
of us who has a chip that's exactly in that position, has this
width and this length, that's going to be extremely difficilt, if
not impossible to do. Now the other tooth also exhibits a little:
bit of wear and tear. ©Now it's tﬁese minute anatomical unique-
nesses of -this tooth, little variations, that I have to look for in
these photographs to see do I see that pattern in the wound, do I
see these little discrepancies that are on the tooth, .are they
represented in the wound. Uh, in this photograph right here, it's
fairly easy to see that the marks are the -same size and shape as
the two front teeth. It's'fairly obvious’to see that those two
marks are the same size as these two front teeth. What we want to
'do now is to look into these areas and see do we find anything that

we can relate to these minute areas. Now I'm holding BE&toqraph

)

¥ in that photograph you can pick up that little notch on this
front tooth that I shdwed ybu on the model. Notice on this scrape
on the skin, if you notice‘thét little doﬁ'in the skin, notice
Qhere it falls in relatioﬁship to this‘tooth; it comes right down
at the beginning of that chip. I'ﬁ gqing to over-exaggerate the
chip; let's say the chip's coming up this way and fhen here's the
flat surface there, the point at where that chip comes together
which would be, you knoﬁ, right here.on.that part of the tooth,
it's going .to give me an angle, a littleApoint. If these teeth
inflicted this bite mark——iet me make sure y'all see that--that
little dot right there in the bite mark, that line, it falls
directly where my éhip comes into my incisal edge. So.here is a

unique feature of these teeth that shows itself in the wound
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pattern. Uh, in Photograph 33—25, we're also looking at the tooth
next door to it. Uh, this tooth does not come up to a razor sharp
edge; it comes up and then it's flat for about a millimeter across.
You see, it's not at a point, but it's actually a flat groove just
like the end of a screw driver blade. @ Right there is flat; it
doesn't come up to a point; it comes up and does like that. There
are some striations and wear in that actual what we call incisal
surface. We see in this bhotograph, uh, which'iS'33—25 another
minute area that corresponds to the shape of the abrasion pattern
on the surface of this tooth, right in this area right there. So
just as we would if we had two different rakes, one rake had ten
fingers on it, andhthe other rake had fifteen fingers, and we come
up and we see where soméone has scratched in the dirt and we want
toAknow was it the ten rake or the fifteen fingéred rake. Now
sinée all of us have the same teeth, that's kind of an easy, you
know, ten or fifteen, that's pretty easy, but let's say we have--we
have two rakes and both of them have fifteen fingers on them. Rake
Number One is fairly uniform, Rake Number Two thé third finger is
broken, and then the tenth finger is bent. When we look in the
dirt and we count one, two, three, we find that that one, the third
gap or third line is missing, and then when we look at the tenth
striafion, we see that it's benf and out of piace. Then we can
say, "Hey, we're looking at this rake, not that rake." And that's
all we're trying to look at in these photographsf Uh, that's about
all I wanted to point out about these.

Q. I'm handing you now 33-10, 33-9 and 33-6, and will ask
you, Doctor, to display those for the jury and also point out those
areas of correlation which you have already begﬁn your explanation

of.
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A. These are photographs of the right foot. ~I'm’sorry, I'l1
have to back up. It is a bite mark that is located right here in
this area, just over the instep of the foot, and we have three of
these. These photographs are showing the teeth of Kennedy Brewer
of the study models. Now once again we want to look for these not
only.overall fit but any small nicks and dings on his teeth that
show themselves in the pattern. Uh, let's go back t6 our two front

teeth. 1I'll do this for this side and then that side. Our little

' angle point, and then our scooped out area on the cutting-edgé, if

we look at these models, and once again I'm going to place them on
the skin and then slowly bring them back and bhotograph, what we're

going to see is we find that not only is these two scraps here and

" here exXactly the width of that tqoth, but where we have our scooped

out incisal area we have a little extra scratch right there in the
dead center of the tooth, and then on our other tooth that has the

pointed éngle from the chip, we find that we get a scrape that

‘comes right to that point. Notice also the tooth that we call

Tooth Number 10, it's not evenly flat; if you look at it from the
back side you'llisee that it kind of comes up ﬁo a little point.
When we get these two teeth in théir right‘ppsition, look at Tooth
Number 10 and how that point falls right -on top of that minute
scratch right there, that.little white dot. Now as we look at
these teeth notice this scratch mark and that scratch mark, you'll
see that it is exactly the same width_as this tooth. Where we have
the little scooped out area, we-have an extra scratch_right there
in the middle of that tooth, that white dot. Now on this todth
wheré we have ouf angle from where our chip comes up to the edge,
notice that scrape comes right to that point. Now on the lateral

tooth, as I just said if you look at it from the béck, you'll see
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that it makes a slight peak, a little cutting point. . In the

photogréph when we look at that tooth we will see that there's.a

little white scratch and it falls directly underneath the point of

tooth number ten. S0 here I've got one, two, three, four, five

‘'unique features of his teeth that are represented in the pattern.

Now I've drug it back a little bit more now in ﬁhis photograph,
notice these two white areas here and here as we pulllalong7 notice
the outline of that white battern and that white pattern énd how it~
compares to the outliné of those two teeth. Think of this as

taking a cookie cutter and stomping it down in the dough, then look

-and does that correspond to that. Now we've taken and drug the

teeth back a 1ittle'bit more, notice ﬁhese two white scrape areas
here énd here. Notice the outline of the cutting edges of those
two teeth and look at how they correspond to that area on her skin,
of coufse,Awhat we've got here is:a bite and then the foot is
either being pulled away or whosever doing the biting is now
turning their head so we get that rake through the sand effect plus
as he goes back you'll see we also pick up the areas over here on
that tooth and that tooth. So what we're looking at here is, like
I'say, five unique features othr. Brewer's teeth that fepresent
themselves in this bite mark on her foot.

Q. Doctor,.I am now going to hand you what has been marked
State's in Evidence 33-5, -33-8, 33-11, 12, 13, 14, and 15.

A. Now we're on the same foot, but instead of down on the
foot we're now up here on the ankle, this area right here, and
we're going to go thfough the same thing again and try to see can
we find the overall patfern-and then can we find any of these
unique features from his teeth in that pattern. This is Photograph

33-15; it's one that I feel has a very important area or areas.
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Let's go back to our tooth number eight where we have the little

chib and the cutting edge of the tooth. Look very carefully in

this photograph. We're talking about this tooth righﬁ'here. This

is the point of my chip from right there to right there. 1If you'll

notice, I have an abrasion or a scrape that goes from the beginning

~of my fracture to the end of my fracture. It is not only the same

size, it is the same length and the séme shape; notice how we get
tﬂat little dip area there, right here. On our front tooth with
the chip in it, that is this tooth -right here. Now noticé this
brown abrasion on thét—-on the skin; notice it starts where the
chip starts and comes down to where the chip ends; it is the same
shape, length, and overall morphoiogy'of this tooth.' Even—-even
with that, let's go to the,tooth next to it, tooth nﬁmber seven, do
yoﬁ see the 1little point that‘the tooth comes to, the ever so
slight point right there; notice the outline of this mark;-right at
that point we have that little bump right there; that's what we
call a mamelon. On teoth number 7, that's the one I 5ust showed
y'all, it comes to an ever so slight point right there} that's what
we call a mamelon, and as you look here at this photograph there's
that point in the'tooth; notice the shape of the abrasion on her
foot and notice at éxactly that position.we have the little bump
right there. Now as we contiﬁue ﬁo drag the model through the

tissue, here I want to go to photograph 33-13, same thing again,

~not only do we have the class characteristics of his teeth in this

wound, we have the individual characteristics of his teeth in.this

-wound. Let's look first, now we've dragged it back about two to

three millimeters, riotice the outline of this tooth here, it's
called number seven, and tooth number six which is the eyetooth.

Remember I told you the eyeteeth will characteristically give you
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a little triangular mark. Look at where ﬁhen we drag this back,
look at where this eyetooth falls in relationship to that little
white triangle right underneath it, plus our point here and notice
from that point to this corner how it corresponds to that scrape
area on the skin there: Here we see I've moved them back a few
millimeters, notice on this tooth number seven from the high point
to the corner how it matches this scrape in the skin from here to
there; We have that exame--uh, same diétance from that point to
that point on the tooth, from that point to that point in the skin.
Now I told you that the canines made little triangles shaped when
the& mark and this is the canine.’ Notice that when we have this
positioned look at where his pointed eyetooth falls, right on top

of that little white triangle in the scrape in her skin, and of

‘course the other teeth line up. Tooth number five, the cutting

edge of it, lines up right on our abrasion line at that point.
Tooth number five, wé're going on back into the mouth, when we have
these three teeth lined up, 1ook.at where that tooth and the
cutting edge of it lands, right there on.that'scrape. So in this
photograph we have one, two, three, four, five unique characteris-
tics_of this'teeth.fepresented in this wound pattern. Uh, lét's go
to the next one which would be 33-14. Notice the outline of these
teeth as they compare.to the outline of the abraded area, the
bruise pattern. Just to get an overall feel, did that--did these
teeth where they drug through that tissue, and, you knoﬁ, here's
our point again, lining everything up. Here we are, we've pulled
it on off again and look at the outline of this tooth and how it
compares to the pattern’that we see, and then of course, you know,
the question'is, did these teeth, were they draggiﬁg through the

skin at this point in time. Uh, have I done 33-127?
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Q. No,*i do not believe so, Doctor.

| BY MR. KESLER: Your Honor, I'm going to object to
the witness asking the district attorney questions.

BY THE COURT: Overruled. You may continue.

A. Excuse me, my hands are ésleep. In photograph 33-12,
same thing that we've been doing in all of these photographs,
looking at the overall configuration and‘fhen the minute configura-
tions. Here we see the outline of the chip on tooth number eight;
here we see the high'pqint on tooth number seven, and notice tooth
number five and six as they fall into place on these abrasions,
same thing again overall, then minute. Here we see literally the
oﬁtline of this 5brasion.follows exactly the outline of that tooth.
Our4high point on tooth number seven falls right into that’dot, the
extra scrape area, and then the outline of these two teeth are
mimicked in the pattern again. So once again we have several other

unique characteristics, uh, representing themselves. Uh, photo-

‘graph 33-5 is a continuation and you can look at the outline of the

pattern and compare it to.the outline of fhe teeth and see how one
is a--a mirror'image of the other. Once again, compare the outline °
of the teeth to the outline of the pattern aﬁdAyou can see'that one
is just a mirror image of the other, a hit and a drag.

Q. Doctor, I'm now going to haﬁd you 33-4, 2 and 3.

A. These are three photographs taken of the left cheek right.
here to the side of the houth. Uh, once again we're goiﬂg to look
at the overall shape and then we want to look for individual
markings from the teeth on the little girl's skin. Our tooth
number eight with the chip in it, notice how wide this.scrape is on
her faée; it's the same width as our chip here. Our incisai

scraping on the other tooth lines up; notice how this bruise falls
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in between those two téeth at that stép, plus of course we've got
our gap there in thg middle. ﬁere we have one, two, three, four,
five unique features of his teeth on that-area. Unh, this is an on-
going, if you would, dynamid movement. If you'll look at our
chipped tooth here in all three of these photographé——my hands are
a problem--if--if you'll look at that chip and notice how it's kind
of scooped out and notice what do we have as we move that tooth
back, but an area that fills in the scooped out area completely
right there at that point. The same thing we've been ddipg in all
of thesé, what we want to look at is first off, tooth number

eight--excuse me--yes, tooth number eight, the one with the chip,
notice how that abrasion when we line it up in that gap, that

abrasion comes right to the edge of our chip to the edge of the

tooth from that point ovef, and then as we look at our other tooth,

notéce how it looks a little scooped out on the cutting edge
eséécially in this photo right here, it's a little chip that I've
been talking about on the cutting edge of this tooth; look at the
abrasion or the scrape that we have on the little girl's face in
this photo, uh, 33-4, and notice that that scrape and abrasion not
only filis in that scoop area but it's the same shape. So once
again we have the cléss charédteristics of his teeth; we have the
positioning of his teeth; we have the rotations of his teeth; we
have everf little nick and ding of his ﬁeeth represented in these
photographs of the wounds on _

0. I am now handing you 33-21, 20, 19, 18, 17, 16 and 22.
I think these_show a little bit of different type of pattern than
we have seen before. Is that correct, Doctor?

A. Yes, sir. Uh, this is what we refer to as paradigmatic

variations, uh, that means atypical. Okay. This is not your
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rubber stamp. Think if we took a rubber stamp and put it on here

and drug it as opposed to going down nice and neat and coming back

up. These are' photographs of _s left hand,

'particularly her thumb. Uh, what we have is a series of photo-

graphs that I believe depicts Christina's thumb in Kennedy Brewer's
mouth, he bites and she of course pulls her thumb out pf the man's
mouth, and what we're looking at is the dragging patterns; let me
see if I can sort them in an order heré for you. I've now put them
in the order of 33-22, dash 21, désh 20, dash 18, dash 19, dash 17,
dash 16, and what we want to look at, what would we expect the
pattern on this little giil's thumb to be if this person was bitiﬁg
into her and she pulls her thumb ocut of his mouth. Using the same
principles that we . have in the other photographs, we start with
this bite, the first photograbh, the thumb is almost all the way
into the mouth;.as the thumb is retracted, notice several aréas
that's-going‘to be of importgnce; that's of course going to be the
edges of these two front teeth on either side of the gap plus the
edges, uh,vof the teeth to where the chip start, that point area
there, and watéh as the tooth drags through or over the thumb. Of
course, you know, if we look at my thumb, wé'll know that the skin
is going to fold and flex as it‘équeezed through thefe, and we
follow along as it comes up, it--it's—-it's not a smooth even
motion, but it jerks and it looks like the tooth here once it's
passed the knuckle sinks back in again, and then we'ré back to the
beginning. = The same thing on these that we did on the otheré,
we've got a thumb thaf's put into teeth and then pulled through,
and we want to see are these teeth consisﬁent with that action as
the.tongue'was being drug through; the areas we want to look at

because this thing, you know, is going from side to side and wiggly
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like that, the cutting edges, the spaces and our chip, and as we
follow as the thumb comes out from undernéath the teeth, notice

this scrape right here how it falls right in on our point of our

"chip, once again. I'm sorry I didn't point this one out to you,

but here notice this center écrape how it falls right in on where
our angle is on that tooth and then wé continue on as it clears the
knuckle, this tooth falls back into place or once it's over the
hump it sinks back in and cuts from that area to here and then
carries on andvthen we're back to the beginning.

Q; Doctor, I'm going to hand you the last two pﬁotographs,'
those are-33;24 and 33-23.

A. Here we have two bite marks or--excuse me--two photo-
graphs of a bite mark on the right wrist, just above the right
wrist. Of course, the most prominent teeth in Mr. Brewer's mouth
are the two front centrél incisors with the gap in between, and in
these series--these two photographs we look at the relationship of
those two teeth, once. again, to these two marks on the 1little
Qirl's wrist, and once again we see the outline of not only the
tooth and the beginning of our space, but our scooped out area here
from our chip. Once again, as we look at these ‘marks underl&ing
the. two teeth, we see tﬁe 6ut1ine of our tooth mimicked in the
pattern plus ourAchip area follows that configuration f;om that
point over to that point over, plus we have that other edge on that
side so once again we have the impression of these feeth in this
tissue.

Q. Thank you, Doctor. If you would resume the witness
stand, Doctor.

(WITNESS RETURNS TQ WITNESS STAND)

BY THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, at this time
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I'm going to recess for the noon recess. The bailiffs
will take you to lunch. I'm going to recess you until
one-thirty. When you return to the courthouse at one-
thirty we will resume the examination of this Witness.
During this noon recess, piease do not discuss the case
among yourselves or with anyone else. Do not allow

anyone to speak to you concerning this case. Should .

- anyone attémpt to do sd, please report that to the

bailiffs or to myself upon your return. You are in

-recess until one-thirty. Please step back into thé jury

room. As soon as the transportation 'is ready, you'll be
taken out. | |
(JURY OUT)

BY THE COURT: During this recess, Mr. Witness,
please do not discuss your testimony with any other
witness. You may stand down if you'd like.

(WITNESS STANDS DOWN FROM WITNESS.STAND)

Court is in recess until one-thirty.

(RECESS)

 k Kk k kx k * %k Kk X

FOLLOWING THE NOON RECESS, ALL MEMBERS OF THE COURT, INCLUbING
THE JUDGE, COURT REPORTER, ATTORNEYS, CLERK, BAILIFFS, AND THE

DEFENDANT BEING PRESENT, THE FOLLOWING PROCEEDINGS WERE HAD:

BY THE COURT: sShow the jury in, please.
' (JURY IN)
'BY THE COURT: You may continue your examination

of the witness.

DIRECT EXAMINATION CONTINUES BY MR. ALLGOOD:

Doctor West, juét to recap some things that you've
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previously testified to, when you place those teeth on the skin in
that fashion, what are you trying to show? Are you trying to show
the actual way the teeth are on.the»skin at the time the bite takes
plaée?

A. Uh, no, sir. What I'm trying to do is. to put the teeth
in fhe beét position so that they can be photographed at the same
time with the wound pattern éo you can compare the cutting edges of

the teeth to the surface that's been disrupted. Uh, it's not

-trying to reposition as far as, you know, mimicking the--the angle

at which the bite was given,'no.

Q. And these--these mafks that we.find in human skin are né
more than--than an artifect--fact of a split second in time, is
that correct?

A} Yes, sir. These are just imprints from a dynamic action.
It's, if you would, a freege frame of what happened.

| Q. Doctor, in many if not most of these marks, there is no
opposing, if you will, uh, bite, no--no opposing mark; uh, |
thexe's——there's.a mark, for example, I noticed you using mo--in
most of these that we selected, uh, if not all these that we
selected, uh, the upper méndible, but I--I never saw.you resort to
or have the occasion to use the--the lowér mandible. Explain to
the ladies and gentlemen of the jury, if you would, pleaée, how

that -can happen, how you can have marks from only the upper portion

' of someone's teeth and not having a--an--an opposing, if you will,

I think that's the word of art that'é supposed to be used, an
opposing mark from the lower teeth.

A. ‘Eighteen years ago when I started into this, ﬁh, area of
bite mark analysis, we were shown several cases where only one of

the two arches, it takes two jaws to bite, but dnly one of the jaws
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whether it be the upper or whether it be the lower, were the only
ones that left an imprint in the skin. I found this, at first
look, uh, you know, I--I didn't understand if. one set of teeth
marked why didn't the other. Over the years in doing research and
producing bite marks and etudying bite marks, I have found that
it's more common -than I originally would have anticipated. The--
the problem that we're looking at is how do the tooth close on to
the skin. It is literally the interplay between the teeth and the
skin that determines whether or not you're going to have a mark.
Uh, you may have what we call a tooth mark, say, someone's pressing
you baek, pressing on yoﬁ,'you just get one arch, sometimes you get
a good impression of the lower'arch and the upper atch doesn't
match or doesn't mark because the skin is pressed up, not against.
the cutting edge this way, but on the back surface as it's bunched
up-as the skin is pulled together. It all depends on which of the

teeth grab and then which push. In the biting you're usually going

to have one set of teeth that do the grabbing and one set that does

the pushing. Of course, you may have what we call, uh, the board

~has officially designated a new term called half bites which is one

in which comes under the, uh, variations of the paradigmatic; uh,
bite mark as ones that yoﬁ don't see both sets of teeth or you
don't see all of the teeth, uh, a partial bite mark, if you would.
Uh, it may be either from the.interplay of the teeth to the skin;

it may be a factor that one set of teeth, in Mr. Brewer's case, his
- Crever B cas

upper teeth are a lot sharper than hlS lower teeth;.they! re much

e T

blunter, the other thlng 1s you may have one jaw 1nto some clothlng
materlal and another into the skin, uh, especially the--excuse me--
the mark on the thumb, if you would take your thumb, put it in your

mouth and bite down, and then drag, you would find that you‘had a
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lot more pressure on the upper teeth on the back of the thumb where
there's not much room to give as opposed to the back side of the
thumb; in other words, the.téeth could move over that portion much
easier than it can over that area, and it's the angle and position
of the teeth to the skin that accounts for whether or not you'll
Qet a mark or not. V

Q. Doctor, based on your examinations of the dentition of

"Kennedy Brewer and based on the photographs, the observations you

made in your direct comparison, do you have an opinion to a
reasonable medical certainty as to whether or not the teeth -of
Kennedy Brewer caused the bite marks which were found on the body
of Christine Jackson?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. ‘And what is that opinion, Doctor?

A. Within _reasonable. medical certaint?, the teeth of
Kenneth--uh, Mr. Keﬁnedy'Brewer inflicted the patterns described on
the body of _

Q. And I believe there are some--somé markings which you
feel more stronger aﬁout than others, is that correct; would that
be én accurate way of phrasing that?

A. Yes, sir. Uh, we have nineteen total patterns in all
that I feel weré related to the teeth, five of those bite marks I
give my highest level of match or comparison; uh, of those five I

would rank them the highest which is reasonable medical certainty.

‘'Uh, of the remaining fourteen, uh, I have several that are what I

refer to as highly consistent, consistent and probable. I did not

find any marks that I considered to be bite marks that could not,

in other words, I would say I think this is a bite mark, but it

doesn't have any correlation to Mr. Brewer's teeth. I didn't find
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Motion for Mistrial and Ruling on Motion (At Bench)

any like that. I had no evidence of another attacker.

BY MR. ALLGOOD: I have no further questions of
this witness at this time, your Honor.

BY THE COURT: Cross examination.

BY MR. KESLER: If the Court will indulge me just a
minute, ' o

(MR. KESLER CONFERS WITH MR. WALTERS)

CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. KESLER:

Q.

For fourteen of these wound patterns then, your opinion

is something less than a reasonable .degree of medical certainty or

dental certainty?

A.

Yes, sir. 4

BY MR. KESLER: Approach the”bendh.

BY THE COURT: You may. '

kTHE ATTORNEYS APPROACHED THE BENCH, ALONG WITH THE
COURT REPORTER, AND THE FOLLOWING OCCURRED OUT OF THE
HEARiNG OF THE JURY:)

BY MR. KESLER: Your Honor, the defendant moves the
Court to exclude all the testimony concerning the

fourteen wound patterns that he has less than a reason-

-able degree of dental certainty.

BY THE COURT: The--
BY MR. KESLER: Move for a mistrial.
BY THE COURT: The witness offered no opinion as

to the maker of those marks. He merely testified that

in his opinion they were made consistent with those made

by teeth or bite marks. He only expressed an opinion as

to the five and the motion is overruled.

BY MR. KESLER:  Thank you, your'Honor.
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Q. Then for these fourteen you are simply unable to give an
opinion within reasonable dental certainty? .

A. Don't let me confuse you. Reasonable dental certainty is
a term which is to be used by the diplomats to describe the highest
level of confidence or certainty in a analysis. Uﬁ, the board
recognizes four, uh, opinions to the ansﬁer, did these teeth make
this mark in skin. fhe one that would be yes, he did, would be
described as reasonable medical certainty. The one that if you
said no, he didn't do it, theﬁ you would have exélusion, no. If
you couldn't tell, then you wpuid give the answer, "I can't tell,"”
and then the fourth answer is ‘consistent, and there are varyingA
degrees of consistency and of the fourteen, uh, remaining patterns,
I would élassify them as consistent.

Q. You--you're making reference to the board in some kind--
did you say standard or guideline?

A, I think they're guidelines in the~-we have just adopted

some standards in February.

Q. You say, ''we have." You're--
A, The board.

Q. --you're referring to the American Board of Forensic
Y g

Odontolbgy?
A. Yes, sir, I am.
Q. All right. And that's the same body that you are

suspended from until May.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And it's your--

A. I was--I was at the meeting and did participate in the
adéption of the standards.

Q. Okay. And it's your testimony that they were adopted at
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that meeting?

A. To the best of my knowledge they were adoﬁted on the
thirteenth of February, yes, sir.

Q. And you're sure of that?

A.- I believe so; I'm not sure.

Q. You could be mistaken about that?

A. Yes, sir. _

Q. Who's the current president of the A.B.F.0.?

A. Uh, John Kinney.

Q. . Okay. And if Mr. Kinney says they have-not beeniadopted
as of yet, would you defer to what he says? -

'A. He or the secretary-treasurer.

Q. ‘Doctor Kinney I should have said.

A. Yes; sir.

Q. There were of course guidelines in effect before
FebruAry, nineteen ninety-five?

A. Yes, sir.

Q.-. There were guidelines in effect in May" df nineteen
ninety-two?

\ A. Yes, .sir.

Q. Can you explain to the jury the difference perhaps
between the term guidelines as opposed to standards, if there is,
in your opinion? |

~A. I have that actual--the board's definition of those two
terms if you can give me just one minute I'll get those.
Q. Sure.

A. (Witness looks through file) Uh, here we go. Uh, this

is the material given fo me by the. American Boérd of Forensié

Odontology. They state that a guideline is a outline or procedure
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to help direct, suggest, but'not'mandatory prqcedurés, starting
point, an aid; advice, not pequired, recommended, not enforceable,
little imperative. Now standards they give this: a model to be
followed, establishes protocgl, a benchmark, strictly defined and
followed by all basis on its correctness, a method of practice that
has met the scrutiny of scientific study and verification,
coﬁpulsory minimal level of practice, more restrictive than
guidelines, more enforceable, out of compliance, and subject to
sanction if not followed. Uh, comment, a failure to follow a
standard may be defensible if it can be justified by proof that the
standard  is not worthy or that the departure is equivalent, and
then the last comment, a guideline may'staie the optimum or ideal
situation. It would be outlined the most,desiréble approach, but
if not followed may be excusable. A standard'might'be less
comprehensive, but would'~state the minimum requirements of
acceptability. A policy would not necessarily have anything to do
with correctness, but would carry the maximum imperative to comply
and is not apprdpriate for scientific investigafion. .
| Q. Okay. - Perhaps vou and I can agree that put a bit more

simply, standards would equal to the minimal level of study? Is
study a good word?

A. Yes.

Q. And guidelines wouid'reflect.§oing furfher and doing more
than the minimal requirements? ,

A. f'm sorry, but I would think it'd be the other way; the--
the guideline is a suggestion and a standard is a--

'Q.- Mandate?

A, ~-law. A mandate, yes.

Q. Okay. So standard means mandate, guideline means going
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further, options?

A, One's a suggestion and the other one says you should.
Q. Okay;

A, I--

Q. Now back to this--the terminology that-you use in giving

your opinions, has your'opihion regarding Kennedy Brewer always
been to a reasonable degree of certainty?

A, Has my opinion been?

Q. Yes, sir.

A, My state of mind?

Q. The way you've expressed it.

A. No. The way I expressed it, to me,'thé best way for me
to tell someﬁody from Missiésippi that I believe that this term is
thaﬁ, you know, my opinion on this matter instead of saying
reasonable medicai certainty, in the past I'd have said indeed and.
without doubt.

Q. Okay. And you said that in, as far as‘I know, your first
written report in this case, May fourteenth, nineteen ninety-two?

A. Yes, éir.

.Q. Do you have a copy of that before you?

A. Yes, sir. (Witness looks through file) I have it.

Q. All right. In that opinibn; I believe that was addressed
to Diane Brooks who was the deputy medical examiner in Noxubee
County. |

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Okay. And in that repo;t you stated that you found
nineteen human bite marks that were found and compared to the
dental study'models. Is that in there?

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. And that the bite marks found on the body of Christina

‘Jackson were indeed and without doubt inflicted by Kennedy Brewer.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. bid you in that report distinguish between the five that
you have testified here today and .the remaining fourteen?

A. No, sir. |

Q. Why not?

A. Uh, I wasn't asked. I mean I--I wasn't trying to hide
anything. I'm just--did I-think Kennedy Bréwer bit thig girl at

the time she died, yes, I do. You know, can you prove it to all

nineteen, no, but I can--got it on five that I believe so.

Q. ‘Who directed the questions to you that you were respond-

ing to in this written report?

A. Uh, the coroner insomuch that, yéu kﬁow, and the district
attorney, uh( you - know, here's four people, look at these four
people, look at this little girl and tell us which one of these
four people, if any, do you think bit this girl,.

Q. Okay. The district atto?ney did fhat?‘

A. Well I mean they--they brought—4I mean; I'm talking about
the law enforcément of Noxubee County. Uh, the sheriff brought
them down; I don't know if I had a court order to examine them, uh,
but, you know, if I find some evidence I'm going to give it to the
coroner or the sheriff and the D.A.

Q. Well you saild you weren't asked to make any distinction.

I just want to know who was doing the asking.

A. They called me and asked me to render an opinion in a
bite mark analysis. -Okay. Did any of our suspects bite this
little 'girl, and my opinion was, yes, I believe I have a suspect

here who bit this little girl.
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Q. Well whoever this was, did they tell you that they had
two ‘suspects in jailrand two others that had not been arrested?
A. All T examined was four people.
Q. Okay. But back to the report, ihdeed and without doubt,
I believe you have used to express. one hundred percent ceftainty.
A. Or as certain as I can be being a human.
Q. Okay. I--I think I asked you yesterday you had given

that presentation in Nashville and -you told them that what you

regarded the way to give opinions were it is, it isn't, or I can't

tell,
A. That's what I've been advocating, yes, sir.
Q. And'duriﬁg‘that time period all qf your opinions were
exbressed indeed and without a doubt? |
‘A, No, sir.

Q. Not all?

A. No, sir.
Q. But--
A, Some of my opinions were no, some of my opinions were I

&an't tell, some of my opinions were consistent, and some of my
opipi&ns were indeed'and without doubt. I could not just write a
report and say, "Yes, he bit her." We had no gquidelines or
standards to follow up until February of this year so i was kind of
on my own and I'11--1'11 admi£<to you and I'll admit to everyone
else, I did very well in school in chemistry and:méth and biology,
and I was a C student in English.

Q. Did something change between May fourteenth, nineteen
ninety-two, and September twenty-firét, nineteen ninety-three?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you have your report that is dated September the
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twenfy——or letter rather that's dated September the twenty—first,'
nineteen ninety-three, before you?

Al fes, sir.

Q. In that letter or reﬁbrt you stated, "The dental study
models of Kennedy Brewer are found to 5e withiﬁ reasonable dental
certainty the teeth that inflicted the bites."”

' A. Yes, sir. -

Q. Now if I understand you correctly that's a--an expression
of less certainty than indeed and without doubt?

A. Undér the new guidelines it's not. From the time of my
first letter to the time of my éecond letter, I had three organiza—'
tions tell me that I was evil and carnate because I used the terms
indeed and without doubt, and ﬁhey were Qoing tg inyestigate'me for
using these words and maybe I should_use these others until it
became official, and I'm not trying to play a name game with any of

those individuals or groups; they give me a guideline, I will

follow it; I'm only trying to express to the Court what my opinion

is on this matter. In simple terms, I beliéve this man bii‘this
girl at least five times somewﬁere at the time of her death, and
whatever words you want to phrase it in is fine with me.

Q. Did you do further study on this case between May,
ninety-two and September,'ninety-three?

A. I did receive a'request‘from thé sheriff of Noxubee
County'and I can't remember which-date; there was a very similar
murder in his jurisdiction of a young female, uh, who had been I
believe murdered and raped and bitten and the sheriff asked me
would I take the models of the man who was--

BY MR. KESLER: Your Honor, may we approach the

bench?
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BY THE COURT:. You may.
(THE ATTORNEYS APPROACHED THE BENCH, ALONG WITH THE
COURT REPORTER, .AND THE FOLLOWING OCCURRED OUTSIDE THE
HEARING OF THE JURY:) |
BY MR. KESLER: I am making an assumptidn that he is
going to be talking about Bud Permenter, at one point
called and wanted him to look at these models with
respect to the Lavon Brooks case.
BY THE COURT: Was that a separate case?
BY’MR.'KESLER¢"Yes, the Lavon--who had already been
convicted and was in the penitentiary. ‘I think that's
what -he's fixing to say, and I don't think that--
BY THE COURT: That would be resbdnsive to yéur
questioh. 'If yoﬁ——
_BY MR. KESLER: I don't--I don't think it is, but
regardless I'm entering an objection.
BY THE COURT: You--you--
BY MR. ALLGOOD: If your--
BY THE COURT: --do not want--
BY MR. ALLGOOD: --Honor please—-
BY THE COURT: "You do not want’thét question
answer--you want to rephrase that quesﬁion?
BY MR. KESLER: :I want--yeah.
BY MR..ALLGQOD:A Hé asked--
BY THE COURT: 1I'll allow you to withdraw that
question and repﬁrase it.
Q. Doctor West, what I'm--what I'm trying to ask you is I
guess simbly this: the difference in terminology between your May,

ninety-two report and your September, ninety-three, report, you're
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telling us that you changed it merely because these three organiza-
tions raised the issue?

A. Simply on a matter of semantics, ?es, sir.

0. Sémantics? |

A.. Yes, sir.

Q. And that's really all this is to you?

A. At that time, yes. Since thaf time I've been able to--
the board had a distinguished law professor, Enwrinkle Finger——
that's his name, Eﬁwrinkle Fiﬁger. And, ﬁh, he pre--he 1ectpred to

us for eight hours; he's. written several books on evidence and

" procedures, and I, as I say, I'm not an attorney, I'm not a poet or

“an English major, and priof to that lecture I really saw no problem

between "I'm a hundred percent sure; reasonable dental certainty;
yes, I have no doubt; indeed and without doubt." Since his lecture
he pointed out to us, the board and myself, that indeed and without

doubt may carry the connotation to the jury that they feel that I

Jhavevleft no room for error.  Please understand, I'm only giving

you my opinion. I'm only a man. I've been doing this eighteen
years; I've made mistakes; I'll probably make some more. I do not
feel that ‘I made any mistakes in this analysié; I have-no'doubt
that my opinion in this case is.ﬁot correct or isAin error and-
whatever the governing bodies deem to be the proper term to get
that information to the jury; I have always followed the guide-
lihes, whenever théy're in existence I follow them, and whatever
you want to call it, as long as it gets ihe idea that I believe he
bit her, I don't have any doubt, and I think I haye plenty of
evidence to back that up. If not, please be free to look at the
photographs yourself. 1I'm just a man.

Q. And there is--there are other possibilities?
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A, I don't believe there's any reasonable possibilities.

Q. Okay. Let's talk about -your techniques a little bit.
This direct comparison{ of .course, it is an accepted technique.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. It's not the only approach or technique, is it?

A, Oh, no, sir.

Q. It's simply one that you prefer?

A, In certain cases. You have to judge each case by its own
merit. Sometimes I'm only given photqgraphs; uh, I may not have
access.to the body, and in those cases ybu have to do a--a moqel to

photograph comparison, but as I stated earlier, any time you

-duplicate material, you incorporate error. When I take a photo-

graph of that little girl's leg, it looks like the leg, but it is

. not her leg; it is a piece of paper with light and dark spots on

it. . It déesn't fold; it's not contoured; it's not a three
dimensional object. Uh, I 1like to think of it as the best
evidence, and if I'm going to render an opinion in a matter of this
severity, I want to look at the best evidence. That's why on
several occasions I've asked for exhumations so that I could look
at-the body. '

Q. Do: you know if there's ah established error rate
associated with direct comparison?

A. I know.of no error rates.established for anj area of
forensic odontology. | |

Q. Do you have an established error rate for Doctor Michael
West?

A, Yes, sir. Uh, my first marriage ended in divofce; my
second marriage is current so I made oné ﬁistake~~(witness laughs)

for sure,
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Q. I see,

A, Uh, I--I--I don't know. Uh, uh, I have used the wrong
terms when compared to the language of the whole United States. I
felt it was appropriate for Mississippi, the people I was talking
to. Uh, I have never seen in any meeting a hundred percent
agreement on any ‘issue that was brought before the society, the
academy, or the board.

Q. - Have you ever testified and responded to a question about
your personal error rate? |

A. Yes, sir, I did.

Q. Did you +tell--I believe this was the--in Mccomb,

Mississippi, was it not, Johnny Ray case? Do you--

A. I--

Q. --remember that case?

A. I don't know.

Q. pid you—-

A. - I was thinking Louisiana.

Q. Did--did you respond to that guestion thatAyour error

rate was slightly less than Jesus Christ?

A. Yes, in the context that I'm not a god. I'm jﬁst a
human. 'I'm—-I'm jué% as capable of making an error as you are or
the——anybody. I'm just human. I'm——I‘ﬁ nothing special,

Q. Have you, uh--I believe you've expressed an opinion, uh,
resolving the controversy surround the assassination of President
Kennedy, haven't you?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you believe that you solved that?

A. No. I think that we constructed the timing events of the

number of shots fired at the motorcade and--and where they struck.
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That's, you know.

Q. And that of course is outside the field of forensic
odontology?
A. Yes, sir. But I'm also a'déath investigator for the last

eighteen years, and I investigate child abuse; I investigate rape;
I in&estigate assault. Uh, I do more thap just dentistry.

Q. When you first look at a body, are you looking for the
term I've been e;pressed to was wound patterns?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. Okay. I think you--you use a slightly different term,
but--but areas of trauma on the body.

A, A.wound pattern is synonymous to a patterned injury which
is simply a pattern or mark on a body tﬁat if you look at it, it
gives you an idea of its mechanism or the object or the event that
took blace. If you saw someone without a sﬁirt and there was a big
réd hand print on his back, it would make you think that someone
took their hand and slapped that individual on their back. That is
a patterned injury. If you saw someone with a tire track across
their chest, you looked at thém you'd say,A"Gee, it looks 1like
somebody run over him with a car." If you see a prototypical or an
aprototypical pattern on someone's arm or leg, you may éay,'ﬁGee,
I think someone bit this persoh." .That's all it is, is looking at
it and it gives you én idea of what happened.

Q. Thgt's the first step?

A. It--well that's how you start an an;lysis is of course to
look at it; I've aiways considered that one of your first premises
is the orientation and dynamics of what weﬁt on.

Q. - Let mé see if I can ask it simpler. Is one of the first

things you want to do is attempt to visually identify a wound
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pattern that is perhaps a bite mark?

A. Yes. ‘

Q.."Why is--

A. You want to--

Q. --that important? .

A. You want to look to see, number one, is there anything
that's obvious, is there anything that's glaring out at you that
you can look at and say, "Yes, I believe this to be a bite mark."
Now the other side of the coin is; i'm given a pattern ahd they

say, "Does this pattern match this 6bjedt?" Usually when I'm first

. presented the pattern that means I'm at the morgue, I'm looking at

the body and I have no.idea of any suspects that the police may
develop. SoA I look at areas on a body and- I may or fnay not
recognize their importance. It's like looking at half of a jigsaw
puzzle, I‘ve got one piece and they say, "Well does it match this
other piece?" I said, "Well let me see the other piecé and I'11
tell you if I think it matches or not." Sometimes I get the -other
piece and it's like this and I go; "No, it doesn't .match." And

then sometimes I get it and I go, “Oh, look, it--it looks like it

matches." So it's--it's a--an on-going, 'you know, dynamic
" analysis.
Q. ‘The five areas that you've testified about'én the body of

_ were you able to identify those wound patterns

as bite marks without the aid of the dental models?

A. The two on her feet I did. I felt from looking at them,
I said, "1 believe these on the ankle are bite marks.” I didn't
realize the thumb was a bite mark, the face was a bite mark, the
thigh was a bite mark, or the other fourteen, uh, could possibly be

bite marks, but there were the two on the ankle and the foot that
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I thought from looking at them, I said, "Yeah, that.looks like a
bite mark to me." '

Q.  So with--with those three that you just mentioned, you
didn't come to the conclusion of bite mark until you appiied the
dental model? '

A, This is an area that we're still de§ating amongst the
diplomats of the.board. 1I'm of the opinion that if you have a

patterned injury, you should call it a wound pattern or a patterned

.injury and not refer to it as a bite mark or tooth mark until you

have some level of certainty that it was produced by teeth. You

could, of course, get around that debate by saying, "I think it's

possibly a bite mark.” But in my way of thinking, until you have

some certainty as to what its origin is which means have you made
a positive match with someone else's set of teeth, only then with
ahy certainty can you call it a bite mark.

Q. Did Doctor Héyne identify any of these pattern wounds or
wound patterns to you as bite marks?

A. I know that we looked at the-body one evening; we saw a
couple of areas that we thought may or may not; I like to discués
these things‘with Doctor Hayne; even though he's not a dentist,

even thoﬁgh he's not a board certified odontologist, I've always

- respected ‘his opinion because in the past, I've worked with him for

nine years, he has recognized bite marks that I overlooked, uh, but
in this particular instance, I couldn't teil you; you know, he
said, you know, "I want to look at this tomorrow or not."' We just
agreed that it's worth looking at; we-jwé might be able to find
something of value here.

Q. But he called you inta this case according‘tovybur May

fourteenth, nineteen ninety-two, report?
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A. Yes, sir. .

Q. My question is: wheﬁ you joined him there in the presence
of the body, did he point out to you and séy,'"Doctor West, these
are pattern wounds, bite marks. I -want you to evaluate them for
me."

A. I've never recalléd Steve ever saying anything like that.‘
Steve usually says, "Mike, I want you to look at this, tell me what
you think."

Q. In fact--

A. '.And like I say, he's had a--he's been very accurate in
the past. Uh, Ivcan only think of out of eight, nine years only a
handful of cases that he's asked me»td come look at and when it was
over I didn't find a.-bite mark or wound patterh, depehding-on what

we were doing.

Q. Eight or nine times you say?
A, Just a handful of them; ves, sir.
Q. . Out of how many occasions would you say?

A. Oh, gosh!
Q. Hundreds?

A. Hundreds might be too many, but maybe over a hundred,

something like that.

Q. For the purposes of our--is that--would a hundred be a
fair number? |

A. Yes, sir. I--I know that there's one statistic me and
Ste&e has talked about. Over the last eight to nine years, we have
cases that me and Steve refer to as rape overkill. These are cases
where the victim of the crime, the person being raped, has been
savagely beaten or mutilated, an overkill situation. In_the last

eight to nine years, we have not had a case of rape overkill that
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did not involve a bite mark. Uh, I can't go into all the psycholo-
gy, but when you have this very violent person to person contact,
these are the cases in which you usuéily find bite marks.
Q. Okay. 8So if a hundred is a fair:number, then about eight

percent of theAtime you have failed to find bite marks?

. A. When Doctor Hayne hés done the preliminary scanning, and
now this include bite marks and wound patterns. |

Q. Okay. When you, uh--you did the majority of your work I

think on the second visit to the morgue on the ninth.

A. Yes; sir.
Q. Do you recall talking with Doctor Hayne ébout any need to
biopsy any of the flesh of this--of the body of this girl?
" A. Yes. Uh, you've got to--you've go£ to understand how me
and Steve work. Uh, we'll' go in and look at a body together

sometimes. ~ Sometimes he'll prefer me to go look at it and then

come to him, and, uh, in this case we had both seen the body

previously, and, uh, on that evening we had gotten together again.

I went ahead and did my work, made my notes, and then I got back to

Steve, he had moved to an adjacent table doing some other work, and
I told him, I said, "Look I want you to do some biopsies on three
of tﬁese bites," and he asked me, you know, what--what kind}of
answer did I want to know. I sgid, "Well, you know, can you tell
me what it is." He said, "Look they're perimortem in nature;
you've got advanced tissue slippage from the body exposed to
water." It's--would be worthless for him to biopsy those to give
me the anéwers I wanted so-- |

Q. Who--who said that?

A, Doctor Hayne.

Q. Told you it would be worthless to do the biopsies?
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A.  That was three yeérs ago and all I can tell you is, you
know, I had requested if he thdught it was worthwhile to do them,
and for whatever reason Steve may or may not have had, he electgd
not to. You'd have to ask him.
BY MR. KESLER: May I approach the court reporter
and get an exhibit, your Honor?
BY THE COURT: You may.
BY MR. KESLER: May I_apprbach the witness, your
Honor?

BY THE COURT: You may proceed.

'Q. Doctor West, did.you, uh, prepare a body diagram in--in
conjunction with, uh, your examination of, uh, _

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Let me hand you what was marked as Exhibit 13 for

Identification, and ask you, is that a copy of it?
A. . Yes, sir.
Q. Did you prepare that?
: .‘Yes, sir.
. Are those your initials down there?
Yes, sir.

A
Q
A
Q. With a M.H.—-
A
Q

BY MR. KESLER: Your Honor, we would ask that this
be made an exhibit to his -testimony at this time.

BY MR. ALLGOOD: I have no objection, your Honor.

BY THE COURT: Let it be received and marked. Pass
it back to the court reporter. She does ha&e to change

the number.
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(COURT REPORTER MARKS PHOTOCOPY OF BODY DIAGRAM AS
DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NUMBER 13 IN EVIDENCE)
BY THE COURT REPORTER: Okay. .
BY THE COURT: You may proceéd.

.Q. Did you or did you have Doctor Hayne make any cuts into
the tissue underiying these wound patterns?

A. I ‘don't--I--I don't recall. Uh, all I--the only
recollection I have of that is that I asked Steve to’ do somethlng
that he later told me that he couldn't do, not that I asked him to
do somethlng and he didn't. Thatfs——that's all I really remember.

Q. Is that, uh, an acceptable technique to~-to either do or
ask the pathologist to cut into that underlying-tissue?-

A. That's a difficult question because I found you receive
criticism if you do and yoﬁ reqeive criticism if you dbn't. If you
cut the tissue out of the body, then you're criticized for remoting
its anatomical pbsition and losing the angiotrophic properties of
the skin. If you do a histological section, then you're accused of
destroying the evidénce. If you don't do a histological section,
then you're accused of not doing a full and complete diagnosis. I
don't thlnk I can answer that question.

Q. Is it part of the guidelines of the A.B.F.0.?

A. If possible, if you can preserve the tissue, you want to
do that, -and that was one of the problems we had in _'s
case .because she was going--starting into a fairly advanced
decomposition. If you take that tissue and try to preserve it froﬁ
that stage on, you'll find that it's--the process is already on-

going and you wind up with a jar full.of mush.

Q. You're saying then that the body of _was

in an advanced state of decomposition?
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A. It was starting. Ith all a matter of degree; she did

"have of course the decompositional odor; she did have skin

slippage; there was bacterial action. Uh, as compared to a
pristine fresh body, ves, but as far as was there too much
decompﬁsition present £o examine the wound patterns, no. I have -
had cases. where there was just too much wound pattern--I mean too
much decdmposition_of the tissue that you just had to forget about
even trying to do anything with it. It was beyond analysis.

Q.. But in.your opinion this was not such a case?

A. From photographic and direct model compaxison, no. I
thought it was still adequate. |

| Q. Now you mentioned I believe you said histolic study?
A. Histological.
Q. Histologiéal; pardon me. Is that--does that involve the

microscopic study of the tissue?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. That was not done in this case to your knowledge?

A, To my knowledge, I don't know. |

Q; Without the direct comparison technique at least on three

of these woﬁnd patterns, you would not able to identify them as
bite marks?

| aA. I would not--in--in other words, if you just gave me a
photograph, especially, say, the one over her cheek and said, "Do’
you believe that this is a bite mark, yes or no? " I wouid look at
it and I would probably tell you no, I don't think it is, bﬁt then
if you took his teeth and set it on there and ask me, "Now that you
see the pattern and now that you see the teeth, do you think that's
a bite mark?"” 1I'd say, "Yes." But no other information than the

photograph of her cheek, I'd have to say, "No, I--I'm of the
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opinion that it's probably'hot,ﬁ or "I can't tell."

Q. | Who is Homer R. Campbell, Jr.?

A. He's a .forensic odontologist from Albuquerque, New
Mexico. |

Q. And do you know who Chris Sperry is?

A, Yes. '

Q. Are you familiar with the case report that they wrote?
I believe it was published in October, nineteen eighty-nine, is
what tliis says.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that is an--an article abdut, uh, these proceéses
that we've been discussing here today, is it not?

A. .My recollection of that article is that a woﬁhd pattern
was found I believe on the breast of a victim and one group of
doctors thought that this pattern was a bite mark and the other
group of doctors thought that ‘it was acﬁually aAsection.or a
vulched area of tissue that had been cutlout with a knife. Uh, I
never saw the original photographs, I was nbt involved in that
case, but if I remember correctly I think Doctor Campbell, uh, who
I've consulted with on many times, he was of the opinion that this
was a piece of tissue that had_been'cut out with a #nife; it was
not a bite mark. |

Q. Did you say you've wofked with Doctor Campbell?

A. | Consulted with him. I--I talked with him last week. I
have a case that I wished his opinion on.

Q. In that article was it set forth that there should be two
initial questions in the mind of the odontologist when he begins an
examination? Do you remember that?

A. No, sir.
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Q. .Would you disagrée with that.the first question should
be, is it truly a bite injury? |

_A. Well that'd be like walking up--now I'm--I'm trying to--
you got to look at it from my perspective. A lot of my colleagues,
Doctor Campbell; uh, and others, they are only just dentists. Uh--

Q. What do you mean by that?

A. In other.wbrds, they limit a lot of their work strictly
to odontological. In other words, if I walked up on somebody and
there was a tire track across his chest and I said) "That's not a
bite mark," that'd be kind of ludicfous. Now‘Homer does the
lectures fof the Armed Forces Institute of Pathology on Wound
Pattern Analysis which means, yoﬁ know, whether it be 'a ring, a
watch, a shoe, a bumper from a car, a hammer, teeth,-uh, now-I
would have guessed the odontologist if he waé looking at an area
and, uh, the question fo him-was, "Is it a bite mark or not," I
guess' he’ would have to do that. I have to look at it from a much
broader pérspective as td what is'thisf is this a piece of useful-
.information; is it a bite mark; is it an artifact; is it a
decompositional alteration; uh, iﬁ other words, if you take a set
of dental models and compare it to this pattern and there's no
correlation whatsoever, you. could probably say, "Well i'don't
believe it's a bite mark, at least not a bite mark inflicted by
this man." I--I don't, you know.

Q.  But you said Doctor Campbéll is only a dentiét. You said
that, didn't you?'

A. From the_étandpoint of that aiticle, yes, sir. I don't
know is hé‘a coroner or'medical examiner/investigator.

Q. He's a past president of the American Academy of Forensic

Sciences, isn't he?
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A. The president of the American Academy of.Forensic Science
sets up meetings, =xeroxes papers, -has receptions .and giveé out
awards, an odéntologist analyzes bite marks, a medical examiner '
investigates death. Being president of the academy is an adminis-
trative; he's a sa--you know, he's a secretafy. I could hire a
girl out of high school that can type to do that.

Q. Is he one of your colleagues that's vastly ignorant?

A, No, sir, not Doctor Campbell.

Q. - Then maybe you do regard him as a little more than just
a dentist?!
A. From the standpoint of is he doing wound patterns or

medical examiner or death investigation.

Q. Is he a board certified forensic odontologist?
A. Yes) sir, he is.
Q. And you're not?

A, Not until May the eighteenth.

Q. Do you agree or disagree that the first area of ingquiry
should be is this truly a bite injury? |

A. ' I disagree.

Q. And as you said, there is a great deal of disagreement
among :the group?

A. Yes, sir.

'Q. Have you in fact regard forensic odontology as much an
art as it is a. science? o

A. Just as dentistry, yes, sir.

Q. So is it a science or is it art?
A. It's an art and a science, yes, sir.

0. I see. Do you consider that the opinions that you .give

are objective impartial scientific opinions?
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A. I try my best to make sure that I'm only influenced by
what I see and the evidence I collect; yes,_sir.

Q. What does it mean .to be ob--objective; what does that
term mean, for the record?

A, If you gave the same information to two people, they
should come to the same opinion; you doﬁ't put in your personal
biases or your subjectivity, and I've always found that ludiérous.
Anythiﬁg you've ever asked, anybody's ever asked me, has got to
have some level of subjective response to it.

Q. And you have so testified in the past, have you not?

A. I believe so.

Q. . You have testified that these opinions are subjective in
nature?

A. That's why at the bottom of ﬁy report, I put my name so

they'll know this is the opinion of Mike West. That's all it is.
Q. Now vyou didn't take or you didn't have taken any
impressions of the wound patterns?

A.. No. Number one, they weren't three dimensional; number

. two, I felt that trying to take impressions of this tissue would

have destroyed it.

Q. Is it when it's possible?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. It is a preferred technique to utilize?

A. If you have a three dimensional pattern'that you can take
an impression of, yes, sir. ' | |

Q. Were there any sample bites made in this case by you or
anyone to your knowledge?

A. Samplé bites, if you mean pressing them into wax, yes.

If you mean taking the molds and inflicting a similar intensity
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‘bite mark on somebody, no. If you mean taking the models like I

did in front of the jury and just press them into my skin to get an
indentation, yes.

Q. But you did--you didn't press any--what did you say, wax?
You didn't do that?

A. Alley wax.

Q. You didn't do that?

A. I did.one. It's--I published a paper in the American
Academy of Forensic Science several years ago. It was a study to
show--one of the techniques that my—-snme of my colleagues promote
i; you take the stone models of the teeth and you press them into
a flat piece of wax, and it makes a very accurate indentation of
where the teeth go in, and fhen yon lay a sheet of cellophane over
that wax and you trace out the holes. Now you take that cellophane
and go back either to a photograph or to the person and lay that
cellophane over it and see if it matches or not. That was one of
fhe major»techniéues for many, many years. The only problem is it
doesn't work. We did a research study where wé had individuals
bite their arm and we photographed their arm. Then we took
impnessions of their teeth; we then took their teeth, mashed them
into wax, made our tracings, and then put the tracings back over
photographs of their own bite mark, and in over fifty percent of
the cases the tracings did not match so the technique is in error.
It's publlshed in a peer review journal and I'm really amazed at
the number of dentists who still use that _ n——uh, improper
technique.

0. Would that also be referred to as using an overlay?

A. Yes, sir. Well it's one of the ways to--to fabr;cate an

overlay. I published the article, "The Use of a Human Skin and the
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Useé of Bite Mark Template." Instead of using wax which has no
relationship to human skiq that I_know of, I advocate if you're
going to dé_that method take the stone models, dip them in ink and
then find somebody who's about the same size anatomically, press
them on to them and photograph it from the same perspective as you
do the other. ©Now this is very useful in what I call compression
bites; a cﬁokie cutter, it goes down and.comes_stfaight back up.
This would be very  good for your prototypical bite marks, but if
you have bite marks that exhibit drag like a rake going through the
sand, it's not applicable.

Q. Anybody that uses this overlay technique then would be in
that category of being vastly ignorant?

A. No, sir. vastly ignorant meant the doctors in the
oddntologicél field who knew nothing about fluorescent photography.
We have ninety diplomats; some of the diplomats are very well
versed in compuﬁers;.l'am not. We have some who are very well
versed in malpractice which I am not. We have some that are very
well versed in bite marks, some in, uh, human identification, but
I would say probably one of the areas that the board is the most
lacking is photography, and if you have never conducted any
research into the photography field, if fou don't take your own
photographs, if you don't have the lighting equipment and you're
totally unaware of what if is I'm talking about in a photographic
connotation, then I consider you ignorant from the dictionary term
of being uninformed. I have tried to publish and present every-
thing that I've ever done in this field to educate. My critics are
people who don't do photographs; the people that agree with me are
photégraphers. | '

Q. Photographers, but not forensic odontologists?
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| A.. Oh! A photographer is someone who understands photogra-
phy whether he be a lawyer, a doctor, candle stick maker. If you
are ignorant in photography, it's very difficult for you to
understand what I'm d01ng in photography. ‘

Q. Can you, uh, define a controlled double blind study for
the meﬁbers of the jury?

A, Yes, sir. A controlled double blind study is one that's
usually designed for the testing of medioations. Let's say I had

a pill that I said will keep your hair from falling out, and, uh,

‘we took the jury and we gave twelve pill bottles and half of those

p111 bottles was the medicine to keep your hair to fall out and the
other half of those pills are sugar, and we don't tell you which
one it is ‘and we let you take this medicine and as we go down in
time we come and look at you and we ask you, "Do you think your
hair's’falling-out,"'and you don't know if you're téking the sugar
or if you're taking the medicine and you tell us, "Well I think I
am; I don't think I am, whatever." Uh, double blind studies do
hot——are osuallf inappropriate in bite“mark analysis and wound
pattern'anaiysis. If we were'doing a drug study, it'd be very
imbortant. The thing thot you have to look at in bite mark
analysis, what type of s$tudy should you do, that should be an
éxamination of the class characteristics and an examination of the
individualiiing characteristics. If those work, then you have a
proper analysis.

Q. There are no such studies then to 'yohr knowledge
regarding this technique of direct comparison?

A. I've published three'articles; there were over twelve
presentations in the last ten yeors at the“American Academy of

Forensic Science of other doctors advocating the use of direct



W N

v W N G W

10

11
12
13
14
15

16

17

18

19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29

West - Cross Examination by Mr. Kesler 805
comparison. I have on file in my office ten other doctors, some of
theﬁ diplomats, some of them not; who advocaﬁe'the'use of direct
comparison. I have never seen any articles’ or presentations
against direct comparison.

' Q. I must have pﬁrased my question--let me rephrase it--are
there any controlled double blind studies on direct comparison?

‘A, Not to my knowledge.

Q. You said earlier that, uh, you used that term indeed qnd
without doubt. Can'you tell me some other forensic odontologist
who used that terminology?

A.. I know Doctor Souviron, 'I--I heard one of his feports
where he did say indeed, and I have'had had him--heard him say he
had not doubt, but I don't think he's put them together.

Q. So your answer is no? |

A, Uh, to my knowledge, no.

Q. Have you ever published anything, uh, about that
terminology, indeed and without doubt?

A, I--I wrote two articles, one was, uh, "The Uniquenéss of
Wound Patterns,” and.then the other one was, "A Second Look at
Wax," and I don't have them in front of me. Uh, I know I've never
written an article on terminology, no. I'm a--I'm ignorant when it
comes to English. I'm not an expert.

Q. Wﬁén you had your hearing with the Ameriéan Academy of
Forensic Science, did you'make some verbal responses to the charges
that they brought againét you?

A. See, I'm glad you brought that up.' The reason I quit the
écademy is because I never had a hearing.

Q. The acadeﬁy or the international association?

" A. - The international association, I never had a hearing; the
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academy I never had a hearing. All I asked was let me be present
at my trial.and present my evidence and I wasn't allowed that
opportunity.

Q. Were you given the opportunity to make a response in
writing?

A, Yes.

Q. Within that response did you say that you do not
subscribe to the verbal fencing advocated by many that one may only
couch his or her opinion behind the vail of reasonable medical,
parenthesis, dentél certainty?

A. As I've tried to explain to you, number one, that
senténce'was,written for me by a lawyer friend. .Number two; I can
only teli you in whatever words you wanf to know, yes, no, I can't
tell or maybe. Now if you want to talk for five years, use any big
word you want to use, to me it’s going to come down to yes, no, I

can't tell or maybe. 1In this case I think it's yes.

Q. Did you make that response to the American Academy
complaiﬁt?

A. Yes, sir. It was in one of my reports.

Q. ' You said a little while ago that you have méde'mistakes

in the past.

A, Yes, sir.

Q. I asked you yesterday about the Bourn casé down in
Pascagoula, do you recall that? | .

A. - Yes, sir.

Q. Did you make a mistake in that case?

A. I reviewed the photographs, I reviewéd the models, I

reviewed my analysis, I am still confident of my opinion that his

teeth made that mark on that woman's skin, and unless someone can
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show me another set of teeth. that would have to be identical to him

.or explain td me how that could possibly be, I am still confident

of my opinion in that case.
Q. Have you ever heard of Gen Test Laboratories, Incorporat-
ed?
A. Yes, sir.
0. Do you know what they do?
A. They--they do DNA analysis. They're in - Metarie,
Louisiana; I've used them a couple of time.
Q. That laboratory excluded Mr. Bourn bésed on DNA. studies,
did it not? |
.BY MR. ALLGOOD: If--if your Honor please, I will
object to the hearsay in that respect. I--obviously he's
under cross examination; I don't have any problem with
that; I don't have any problem with him bringing up the
matters before the Court, but I expect them to do it in
an appropriate fashion. That is a hear--calling for a
hearsay or informatipn based on é hearsay source, and I
am going to object to that.
BY THE COURT: The objection is sustained.
BY MR. KESLER: The Court indulge me just a moment.

(MR, KESLER CONFERS WITH MR. WALTERS)

Q. You are of course familiar with the Mississippi Crime
Lab?
- A. Yes, sir.
Q. The Mississippi Crime Lab did some tests on hair and

fingerprint evidence in that Bourn case, did they not?
A. I'm not--I'm assuming they did.

Q. You assume they did?
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A; I didn't 'submit any hair or fingerprint evidence to the
lab. I was never supplied é report.‘ It has no bearing on the
question that I was asked, was Mr. Bourn's teeth the teeth that
inflicted the bite on the victim., Uh, I--if they did issue a
report I wouldn't want to see it while I was doing my analysis.
The only.thing - I want to concern myself with is the class and
individual characteristics of his teeth and how they relate to the
bite mark. That's the.only~thing I'm an expert in and that's the
only thing I should base my judgment on. I should not worry about
what the blood guy says or what the hair‘guy says, I should only
base my opinion on the facts of the evidence of the feeth,

Q. Are you aware 'you were the only remaining expert
available.to the prosecution égainst Mr. Bourn?

BY MR. ALLGOOD: If your Honor please, onée again,
this callé for hearsay information based on a hearsay
source, and I have to object to it.

BY THE COURT: Sustained.

0. "Could we agree that objectivity is important, should be
important to a scientiét?

A. Of course.

Q. Caﬁ we—-

A, In the aspect of'rendering an opinion and in the aspect
of'the interpretation of his data, but if that.scientist is an
advocate of a new teéhnique, I think that if he does not show to
the Court or the people who is questioning him that he has the
confidence of that technique, then hé is in error.

Q. Are you through?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. Do you think ethical conduct is important to scientists?
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A. Depending on who is the ethics judge. I do not want to
have other experts who testify against me in court routinely where.
they're on one side of the‘iSSue and I'm on the other side of the
issue, those men are not ethically qualified to sit and judge me.
They should get someone who has‘no.bias‘against me to judge me.

Q. Finally, could Qe agree that in any disciplined making
material misrepresentations'a fact would be unethical?

A. Representatién, misrgpresentation of data is lying,
cheating. . People who are going to determine was this evidence
presented properly should be knowledgeable about the evidence. You
should not get tw6 plumbers to rule on did the electrician do a
good job. I am a dentist, and I have been judged by dentists. My
problem is they judged me on a photographic technique that they'are
ignorént on. ‘When they do their research, they find out.that, ves,
Doctor Wesﬁ-is right. The two men on the ethics committee who
found me guilfy have published a paper and presentai a baper
confirming the resul;s that they said'I lied about. I'm stunned.

Q. You thought that it was important to join the American

- Board of Forensic Odontologists, didn't you?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And it was important té become a diplomat?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And when you joined it you agreed to abide by its
constitution and by-laws, didn't you? ‘

..A. Yes, sir.

Q. Which include the ethical standards of your field of
expertise--

Ai Yeé, sir.

. Q. -~forensic odontology?
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A. Yes, sir.
Q. - There are only about a hundred in round figures forensic
odontologists in the United States, aren't there?
A. Yes, sir.
0. And they have judged you unethical?
A, No, 'sir,
BY MR. KESLER: No further questions.
BY THE COURT: Redirect.

BY MR. ALLGOOD: Just a few questions, your Honor.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. ALLGOOD:

Q. Insofar as the, uh; instructioné ybu obtained from law
enforcement before you did your examinations .in this'éase, the case
6f the Statequ Mississippi versus Kennedy Brewet, ﬁho gave you
those instructions, who reqqested.this iﬁformation of you, and what
did you or what were ydu.askea to do? |

A, I believe——yeah I was——Steve Hayne called me and asked

.me to come up and look at this glrl s body._ For the last eight

years I look at a body and I write a report and I send the repért
to the coroner or the D.A. or the sheriff who's handliné the
investigation of that individual's death. Uh, Steve asked me to
look; I-iook; I wrote a report; uh, I answered the questions I
thought. You know, I mean no one said, did this person bite, did
that person bite, did this person bite;<they said we want you to

examine these people and do an analysis, and I--I did that. As a

_ matter of fact, my report to the coroner, I sent a carbon copy to

the sheriff's office and one to the district attorney's office.
You know, these are the people that are involved in death investi-
gation. I-~-

Q. And you did that--
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A. I did it for them; I didn't do it under their direct
supervision other than ﬁheir permission to examine their body.

Q. You did that as a matter -of form, a matter of course, is
that not correct?

A. | Yés, sir.

Q.-. I mean it's not like the coroner called you up and said,
"I want a report with this, this and this in it," or I called you
up and said, "I want a report With this, this and this in it.

A. I'm always, you know, "Look at it and tell us what you

think, Doc."™ That's usually my instructions.

Q. As soon as you formed an opinion you reduced that opinion
to'writing‘and maiied it to the appropriate authorities?

A, Yes, sir. |

Q. In the testimony that you have previously testified to,
just so there will not be any--any misunderstanding, you testified

about a similar homicide in Noxubee County, Mississippi, is that

correct?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Just so the jury wiil not be confused} that case has been

tried, diSbosed of, and it's over with, is that correct?
| . A. Yes; sir.

Q. :You Qere asked about your-techniques in making your
evaluations, in making your determinations and what have you, and
much of that has centered on this ditect comparison, uh, that we
have heard so much about here this afternoon. Do you always use
the technique of direct comparison?

A. No.

Q. Explain why or why you would not use the technique of

direct comparison, depending upon ' the circumstances and the
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situation. - |

A, Number' one, you don't always have the body or the tissue
to do a direct comparison. Number two, uh, a case comes to mind a;
uh, small infant, uh, had open wounds and he was in the hospital.
It would have been inapprbpriate for me to touch those areas with
any type of objéct because you can't sterilize those stone models;
you could cross infect the infant. Uh--

Q. The éhild was still alive, right?

A, Yes, the child was still alive. Uh, number three, if the
pattern is in tissue or material that is very fragile, you either
have to be extremeiy'careful with direct comparison or not do it
because you have to have some degree of certainty that you're not
going to alter the evidence by doing a direct comparison, and then
sometimes, like I séy, you're——it's~-all you're given is a'étack of
photographs -and the majority of the cases in bite mark analy31s is
you're glven photographs and a model and you have no access to
that tissue.

Q. You were asked.about some articles you had written on the
John F. Kennedy assassination. I thihk;—I think you have put
together a presentation and have had--written an article or'twovon
that.partiqular instant in American history, is that correct?

A. Yés, sir, '

Q. . Uh, you and I believe there's another doctor or two
involved.in that effort, ié that correct?

A. | Oh, goodness. Doctor Mark McKozie who's the curator of
the National Museum of Health placed mj video in the bermanent'
archives-of the Armed Forces Institute of Pathology Museum of
Medicine in Washington, D. C. George Lundberg, the editor of JAMA

wrote an article--
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Q. What is JAMA? Explain that--

A. Oh, I'm sorry. (Witness laughs)

Q. -~for these people. They don't know what JAMA ‘is.

A. JAMA is the Journal of the American Medical Association.
That's part of our lingo. Uh, they wrote seferal artiéles in that
journal about my analysis. Uh, I got a nice letter froﬁ Governor
Connally and President Ford and} uh, such és that, but it's just,
you know, a historical question. A

Q. Much like some people today debate who killed President

Lincoln and hbw he actually died and things of that nature, is that

‘correct?

A. Yes, sir.
Q. It was a version as much as anything, is that correct?

A. Yeah. I don't believe they're going to take my analysis
and charge anybody with a murder; no, sir.

Q. In--in the instance of the 'child you were talked about,
uh, or you did talk about, the--the level of decomposition, when
you first saw the child you saw her on May ninth I believe, is that
correct? Check your records if you need.

A. No, sir. I saw her on May the fifth.

Q. My error, May fifﬁh. It was on May ninth that you
returned to perform your other examinations, is that correct?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. SoAthat was—-there are some four or five days that had
elapsed between thé time you initially saw the child and the time
you actually came .to perform your comparisons, is that correct?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. And, of course, during that period of time, uh, the body

is continuing to deteriorate, is that right?
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A. Of course. The--it was stored in a cooler; we--we looked
at the body, we discussed the situation, we came to the opinion

from our training and experience that it would be_better to let her

body cool in the cooler of the morgue for a few days to accentuate

the minor patterns that wére there, allow the tissue to dry; it
would be--we would have more information to work with and we'd be
in a less cﬁance of destroying the tissue if we went through that
process.

Q. And, uh, Doctor, much I think of the cross examination
and much of your difficulties with these various licensing boards,
various professional organizations, stems from your use of words,
is that not correct?

A. Yes, sir. I'm terrible with words.

Q. And - I believe that much of,. again the cross examination
and much of your'difficulties with these various licensing, various
professional organizations, really turns on--much of your difficul-
ties really turns on the way you phrased your opinion, is that_not
correct?

A. Yes, sir..

Q. Whether you use the words indeed without a doubt or
rather instead you use the words reasonable medical certainty?

A. I thought it was a lot to do about nothing and then it's
caused me so much grief. I'll say purple, purple, yeilow if that's
what they want me to say. I don't care. As long as the jury and
the Court understands what I'm tryiﬁg to tell them, I don't care
what words are used. I am bound to follow the. guidelines of the
board, but pleasé remember. these guidelines were not a--I'm
assuming they were adopted; I've been eluded to that maybe they

haven't even been adopted yet. But, you know, I--I'm--I'm always,
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State Rests (Jury Out)

"How do'I_break in ninety—three that hasn't been set till ninety-

five?"

I haven't figured that one out yet.

BY MR. ALLGOOD: I have no further questions of this
witness, your Honor.

BY THE COURT: You may stand down.

BY MR. ALLGOOD: If your Honor pleése, I am going to

ask that Doétor West be allowed to remain and that he--

"we discussed previously whether or not he be allowed to

remain in the courtroom during the pendency of other
witnesses testimony in this case.
-BY THE COURT: He's excluded from the rule as an

expert. He can remain in the courtroom during the

testimony of other witnesses.

I'm going to ask you to étep back into the jury
room for a brief recess. 1I'll call you out as soon as
we're.ready to proceéd.

(JURY OUT)

BY THE COURT: Mr. Allgood, you had.indicated that
you ‘would probably use this witness that has just
testified as your last witness prior to resting. Is
that correct? bo you anticipaﬁe doing that when we
reconvener

BY MR. ALLGOOD: Yes, sir, your Honor. As a matter
of fact, I intend to rest in chief immediately. Uh,

quite frankly I intended to do so before you let the jury

Ago out and I don't know why I neglected to. I‘had other

things on my mind; however, I will make such é statement
now that I do--the State does, uh, intend to rest at

this particular juncture and the State would rest in
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chief. I will do that before the jury once we come back
from--from the recess, but I think we can treat it as
already done for purposes of what I know is coming and.
this Court knows is coming.

BY THE COURT: Do you want to make a motion at this
time or do you want a'few momenté before you make the
motion?

BY MR. KESLER: I'll make it now, &our Honor, just
it--it-~- |

BY THE COURT: State your motion.

BY MR. KﬁSLER: This is out of order and it's with
your permission to do ‘so? 4 | |

BY THE COURT: 1It's in o;der. Make your motion.

BY MR. KESLER: Your Honor, the défendant moves the
Court to direct a verdict of not--strike that~-comes now
the defendant and mo&és the Court to exclude the evidence
offered on behalf of the State showing in support thereof
they failed to make out a prima facie case of the offense
charged, that being capital murder, murder committed

while engaged in the underlying felony of seXual'battery.

"That concludes the motion.

BY THE COURT: In ru1in§ on that motion at this
time, the Court must assume all.evidence adducedAon
behalf of the State as true and all reasonable inferences
that might be garnered from that evidence. 1In accepting
all of that evidence as true and reasonable inferences
therefrom, the Court finds that the motion should be and
hereby is overruled. | |

I would like to take this opportunity to address the
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defendant for the record.

BY MR. KESLER: Come here, Kenny. Stand up here.
{DEFENDANT STANDS AT PODIUM WITH MR. KESLER)

~BY THE COURT: Mr. Brewer, in this case the State
has presénted its evidence in chief and has rested. I
have ruled on a motion made by:your counsel in your
behalf to diféét a verdict. I have overruled that
mo;ion. That means that the defense must go forward,
if it desires to go forward af this time and present
evidence and testimony, if it desires to do so. During
this particular stage of the trial, you have certain
constitutional rights that I want you to be aware of.

I am sufe that you have already discuséed this with your

-attornéys, and they have expléined the legal ramifica-

tions of this to you; however, I want to . be certain that
you understand. You have a constitutional right to
testify as a witness in this case. If you elect to
testify you will be sworn and subject to cross
e*amination as would any other witness who-testifies.
You also have an absolute right to not testify as al
witness in this casé, and if you.elect to not.testify
as a witness, the State is proﬁibited by our law from
commenting on that fact either'directly or indifectly
in the presence of the jury. Do you understand that?

BY MR. KESLER: Speak up.
Yes.

BY THE COURT: The decision as to whether a
defendant should or should not testify is an important

decision. You should make that decision only after a
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full and complete consultafion of its ramifications
with your attbrheys. Do you understand that?
Yes, sir.

BY THE COURT:' How much time do you want?

BY MR. KESLER: ' May he pe,seated, your Honoi?

BY THE COURT: He may.

BY MR. KESLER: Sit down, Kenny.

(DEFENDANT RETURNS TO SEAT)

BY MR. KESLER: Your Honor, we have, uh--I've

‘already, uh, talked with-Mr. Allgood and advised him,

when Doctor Scuviron érrived, also arriving with him
are some-slides that are demonstrative evidence that
he——wé plan to use in his testimony. Uh, they were .
collected and prebared, as I understand it, either late
last week, this week, and Mr.‘Ailgood, of course, uh,
needs to be afforded an opportunity to see those so we
will need a little extra time.
BY MR. WALTERS: And also to set that equipmeﬁ;'up

in the courtroom, your Honor.

- BY MR.»ALLGOODf If your'Honor please——A

'BY THE COURT: 1I'm sure these are matters of

physical matters that you have shown to the-State in

discovery and given to them way before today’'s date.

BY MR;‘KESLER:. No, sir. They only arrived apd
I saw them about ten minutes till twelve today for the
first time.

BY THE COURT: You mean to tell.me that your
expert had these items of evidence and did not disclose

the fact that he had them even to defense counsel.
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BY MR. KESLER: No, sir. I'm telling you that in
the course of preparing he decided that it would be
helpful in explaining his opinion to the jury and decided
to uée those, advised us of it, and I have advised the
district attorney of it.

BY MR. ALLGOOD: If your Honor please, I am going
to have to:spend some time with these exhibits. I am
not going to--and--and I want to make it clear, I am not
going to chastiseldefense counsel, but I haQe to say
this is the very sért of ambush which the'rules of
discovery were designed to prevent. Were the shoe on
the other foot, thé State of Mississippi would be held
probably in contempt of court because I would be éharged

with knowing everything that my expert had, my evidence

" would be subject to suppression, I would be subject to

public castigation. As it is, I am in a position that
they have articles which they intend to use, and once

again, I do not fault defense counsel, I fault the

- expert because defense counsel did not know this was

going to be here until he showed up with them. That's
my understanding.

BY MR. KESLER: Well I knew about it on the phone,
and it wasn't literally ten-fifteen this morning.

BY MR. ALLGOOD: 4At-ten—fiftéen this morning then.
That's--that's-- |

BY MR. KESLER: I told Mr. Allgood about it actually
before today that he would be bringing this stuff, but
I didn't have access to it to give it to him or really

to explain what it was.
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BY MR. ALLGOOD: I am now in a position where T need
to sit down with my expert énd view from what I have seen
three sheets, and I cannot tell you how many‘slides are
on each sheet. I apologize, your Honor.

BY THE COURT: Box versus State. Yéu will have the
opportunity to physically examine-- '

BY MR. ALLGOOD: A concurring opinion that has been
adopted by law it seems.

BY THE COURT: You will have the opportunity to
examine thdse items and repbrt back to me if there is
anything further.

BY MR. ALLGOOD: Yes, sir.

BY THE CbURT: I do agree with the statements that
the State has said about what I would do if the State
had produced experts who at the last minute came in
with physical exhibits that they wished to have viewed
by a jury.

BY MR. KESLER: Your Honor, may I ﬁust make a
comment? We have been receiving discovery from Doctor
West up through yesterday. Things that were, uh, not
timely revealed or which we were able to déal with and

be prepared. The Court has viewed those two rather

- sketchy letter reports that he initially provided, and

it was only yesterday I believe that we found out that
his opinion was restridﬁed to five bite marks rather
the entire nineteen, but we voiced no complaint.

BY MR. ALLGOOD: 1If youf Honor please, if--to make

the record complete, I--three days before the trial,

once again, we--we talked about that. I received a--
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a--a copy of Doctor Souyiron's report which, uh,
counsel attempted to-provide me on Tuesdaf, but the
fax number that.waé published was wrong so once
again, I don't fault counsél, and he sent it to me

I think fifteen minutes after he got it or something.
It was very prompt after he-gdk it; however, I will
tender for purposes of just making'the record clear
a copy of that--of that opinion; that opinion has
perhaps four lines in it which are pertinent to his
opinions of what he actually found. In no way is--
has Doctoxr Souviron, ﬁh, been forthcoming, dh, open,
uh, in any more degree than Doctor West. I can
certainly not say that--that Doctor West's flaws in
that respect are confined to him. 'Apparentiy it is
endemic to the nature of .forensic odontology.

BY MR. KESLER: Your Honor, I wasn't--I didn't
really intend to get into this verbal exchange, but
I--I'd--

BY THE COURT: Good. We won't.

'BY MR. KESLER: Your Honor, there's one more
thing I do want to. put on the record regarding Doctor
Souviron though. I'made Doctor Souviron available to
the district attorney for'telephone interviéw,
encouraged him to do that; they attempted to do that;

unfortunately they were taping him; he was not made

aware of it; he became angry; he terminated the inter-

view. That is part of their problem in getting
information from Doctor Souviron. I called him after

that, told him to please excuse them on that and if
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they called back to please consider resuming the
interview. I doh't know what happened after that.
I've ddne all that I could. . .

BY THE COURT: I do note this is--Doctor Souviron
is the second expert witness to be used by the '
defense. The first expert, a Doctor Thomas Krauss,
died prior to his examination of the physical evidence
which necessitated éll the physical evidence having to
be sent to a second expert, and it appears during this
period of time, this particular field of'study'and
these two particular experts that are schedﬁled as
witnessesiboth Doctor West and Doctor Souviron have
become embroiled in a professional squabble. 1In any
event,-t#ke this opportunity to accomplish whét Box
mandates. |

BY MR. ALLGOOD: Thank you, ydur Honor.

BY THE COURT: Court's in recess.

(RECESS)

* ok *k Kk k Kk Kk Kk Kk &

FOLLOWING THE RECESS, ALL MEMBERS OF THE COURT, INCLUDING THE
COURT REPORTER, ATTORNEYS, CLERK, BAILIFFS, AND THE

DEFENDANT BEING PRESENT, THE FOLLOWING PROCEEDINGS WERE HAD:

BY MR. ALLGOOD: If your Honor please, a comment
on geography at this point, uh, obviously from where
the slide and the screen is right now ffom where Doctor
West is currently positioned, he would, of courée, not
be able to see that. Might I be allowed to move him
around in the courtroom so that he can see the--

BY THE COURT: I assume that this is going to be
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moved.

BY THE BAILIFF, MRS. HEMBY: They're going to set
it out here. ,‘

BY THE COURT: As soon as the witneés is called,
see, this witness has not been called yet and‘shouldn't
bé in the courtroom at this stage.

BY MR. ALLGOOD: Okay. But I will be allowed to
reposition Doctor West so he can see the slidés.

BY THE COURT: You can just have him have a seat
over here.

BY MR. WALTERS: All right, sir.

BY THEACOURTQ He's an expeit witness and he's
excluded under the rule, and just have hih have a seat‘
ovef here. |

There are some housekeeping matters that must be
taken up before we can proceed with the defense case
4anywéy.- Are we ready to proceed now?

"BY MR, ALLGOOD: The State's ready, your Honor.

BY THE COURT: Is the defendant ready? '

BY MR. WALTERS: Ready, your Honor.

BY THE COURT: Show the jury in, please.

(JURY IN)

BY.THE COURT:' Call your next witness, please.

BY MR. ALLGOOD: If your Honor please, the State
rests in chief.

BY THE COURT: Cail your first witness, please.

BY MR. WALTERS: We call Doctor Richard Souviron,
your Honor.

BY THE COURT: Clerk, would you please swear the
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witness.
' DOCTOR RICHARD SOUVIRON,
upon being called to testify as ‘a witness on behalf of the
deféndant, after(having been first duly sworn b? Deputy Clerk,
Lloyd Cobb, testified as follows, to-wit:
BY THE.COURT REPORTER: That is S~-0-U-V-I-R-O-N?
A. | Perfect; perfect. |
BY THE COURT REPORTER: Thank yoi.
A. - May I get my file?
BY THE COURT: You may.
(WITNESS LEAVES WITNESS STAND TO RETRIEVE FILE)
BY THE CbURT: 'fou may proceed.

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR.WALTERS:

Q. Doctor Souviron, would vyou pleasé tell the jury your
name?

A. ﬁh, my name ‘is Richard Souviron.

Q. Doctor Souviron,.were you made aware fhét you could be

presént in the courtroom dﬁring Doctor West's testimony?
“A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you choose on your own nof to be present during
Doctor West's testimony?

A.  Yes, sir.

. Q. And what is your reason for that?

A, Uh, I feel that I can give a better objective, uh,
testimony if I haven't heard what Doctor West,'uh, had t§ say. I
think I can be more to the point and--and I'm here to testify about
the evidence as I see it and I would prefer not to hear what his
opinions are.

Q. Doctor Souviron, would you please give the jury the





